
Page | 1 
 

Council on Graduate Studies Minutes October 17, 2023  
  
The October 17, 2023 hybrid meeting of the Council on Graduate Studies met in 3108 Blair Hall at 2:00 pm.  

Members Present:  Dr. Bonnie Laughlin-Schultz, Dr. Nikki Hillier, , Dr. Wesley Allan, Dr. Nichole Hugo, Dr. Alexis Jones, 
Dr. Chris Laingen, Dr. Farhad Sadeh.  
Members Absent:  Chavionne Thomas 
Staff Present:  Interim Dean Dr. Robert Chesnut, Ms. Lana Beasley, Ms. Myra Taylor 
Guests Present:  None 

 
1. Minutes 

a. Approval of the 050223 meeting minutes. 
Hearing no corrections, minutes stand as written. 

2. Communication 

a. EA-CHHS-23-09 Prerequisites to be added to: HCM 5610, PUBH 5750, PUBH 5765, PUBH 5800, and PUBH 
5800 
 
Motion to approve executive actions made by Dr. Chris Laingen, seconded by Dr. Nikki Hillier. Approved by 
acclamation.  

3. Items to be Added to the Agenda   
a. 24-04 ENG 5021 (New Course) Evaluating Student Writing 
b. 24-05 ENG 5022 (New Course) Grammar and the Teaching of Writing 
c. 24-06 MAT SPE PROGRAM PROPOSAL 
d. 24-07 MAT SPE 5000 (New Course)  Residency I in Special Education 
e. 24-08 MAT SPE 5001 (New Course) Residency II in Special Education 
f. 24-09 MAT SPE 5002 (New Course) Characteristics and Legal Issues in Special Education 
g. 24-10 MAT SPE 5003 (New Course) Families and Collaboration in Special Education 
h. 24-11 MAT SPE 5004 (New Course) Assessment and Methods for Teaching Students with ELN 
i. 24-12 MAT SPE 5005 (New Course) Strategies and Assessment ELN 
j. 24-13 MAT SPE 5006 (New Course) Class and Behavior Management in SPE 
k. 24-14 MAT SPE 5007 (New Course) Transition Planning for ILN 

 
Motion to add all items to the October 31, 2023 agenda made by Dr. Wesley Allan, motion seconded 
by Dr. Nikki Hillier. Motion passed by acclamation. 
 

4. Items to be Acted Upon:  None 

5. Items Pending:  None 

6. Other:  Advanced Look at New Programs 
Interim Dean Chesnut shared a program concept from Nutrition and Dietetics (3+2 BS Nutrition through 
MSND:DI) 
 

7. Committee Reports 
a. Graduate Student Advisory Council (GSAC): Ms. Myra Taylor shared the GSAC Committee are establishing 

activities for the coming year and that meetings have been well-attended. The Committee will be 
distributing “Boo Bags” to graduate students the week before Halloween. 

b. Booth Collaborative Advisory Committee: (Dr. DeRuiter-Willems) Dr. DeRuiter-Willems could not attend 
the meeting, but will forward copies of the minutes from the meeting at a later time. 

c. Textbook Rental Advisory:  No report 



Council on Graduate Studies 
Meeting Minutes October 17, 2023 
 

 
8. Dean’s Report 

a. Interim Dean Chesnut shared the OISS office has two (2) new staff members, replacing those who resigned 
their positions. Dr. Chesnut shared an office manager-type position has been created and the hired 
individual will be the primary contact for all emails and phone calls. 

b. Nine (9) thesis award nominations were made, and a decision will be made by October 27, 2023 as to the 
winner of the Robert & Katherine Augustine Distinguished Thesis Award winner, the EIU College 
Distinguished Thesis Award winners, and the MAGS/ProQuest Distinguished Master’s Thesis nominee. 

c. Dr. Chesnut reminded those present about the EIU Graduate Fair being held October 18, and encouraged 
attendance and assistance in promoting the event to EIU undergraduate students. 
 

Motion to adjourn meeting made by Dr. Nikki Hillier, seconded by Dr. Wesley Allan 
Meeting adjourned at 2:17 p.m. 



 
 

COUNCIL ON GRADUATE STUDIES 
Meeting Agenda 
October 31, 2023 

 
1. Minutes 

a. Approval of the 101723 meeting minutes 

2. Communication 

a. October 4, 2023 CLAS Curriculum Committee Meeting Minutes  
 

3. Items to be Added to the Agenda  
a. 24-15 Mitchell, Chris Associate Graduate Faculty Nomination (thesis committee-CSA) 
b. 24-16 Webb, Amber Associate Graduate Faculty Nomination (thesis committee-CSA) 
c. 24-17 Wehr, Nathan Associate Graduate Faculty Nomination (thesis committee-CSA) 

 

4. Items to be Acted Upon 
a. 24-04 ENG 5021 (New Course) Evaluating Student Writing 
b. 24-05 ENG 5022 (New Course) Grammar and the Teaching of Writing 
c. 24-06 MAT SPE PROGRAM PROPOSAL 
d. 24-07 MAT SPE 5000 (New Course)  Residency I in Special Education 
e. 24-08 MAT SPE 5001 (New Course) Residency II in Special Education 
f. 24-09 MAT SPE 5002 (New Course) Characteristics and Legal Issues in Special Education 
g. 24-10 MAT SPE 5003 (New Course) Families and Collaboration in Special Education 
h. 24-11 MAT SPE 5004 (New Course) Assessment and Methods for Teaching Students with ELN 
i. 24-12 MAT SPE 5005 (New Course) Strategies and Assessment ELN 
j. 24-13 MAT SPE 5006 (New Course) Class and Behavior Management in SPE 
k. 24-14 MAT SPE 5007 (New Course) Transition Planning for ILN 

5. Items Pending 

a. None 
 

6. Other 
a. CGS Vice Chair Candidacy 

7. Committee Reports 
a. Graduate Student Advisory Council (GSAC) (Myra Taylor/Dr. Wesley Allan) 
b. Booth Collaborative Advisory Committee (Dr. Lauri DeReuter-Willems) 
c. Textbook Rental Advisory (Dr. Wesley Allan) 

8. Dean’s Report 
a. Office of International Student Scholars staffing update 
b. Graduate School Grad Fair Outcome 



College of Liberal Arts and Sciences Curriculum Committee 
October 4, 2023 (Synchronous - Zoom) ELECTRONIC MEETING 

 
Participating Members:  Dave Richardson, ART; Sanghoon Kang, BIO; Steven Pellizzeri, CHM; Chigozirim 
Sodeke, SCJ-CMN; Chris Wixson, ENG; Chris Laingen, GEO; Aura Jirau Arroyo, HIS; Greg Cooper, SCJ-
JOU; Andrew Parrish, MCS; Liza Meyers, MUS; Teresa Britton, PHI; Robert Strasbaugh, PHY; Jeff Ashley, 
PLS; Jerry Zhu, PSY; Nick Shaw, THA; Irene Jacobsen, WLC; Dayden Gardner, Student Member (Arts & 
Humanities); Taeveon Gaines, Student Member (Sciences); Interim Associate Dean Mike Cornebise, ex-officio; 
Interim Associate Dean Chris Mitchell, ex-officio 
 
Members not Participating: Linda Ghent, ECN; Caitlin Lynch, SOC; Angie Rhoads, recorder 
 
Guests: Melissa Caldwell, ENG; Angela Vietto, ENG; Marjorie Worthington, ENG 
 
Chair Parrish called the meeting to order at 3:00 pm. 
 

I. Minutes 
 
On the motion of Wixson and the second of Ashley, the CLASCC minutes of September 6, 2023 
(Synchronous electronic meeting), were approved. 

 
II. Executive Actions 

 
None. 

III. Items Acted On 
 

24.02 ENG 3902, “Foundations of Second Language Acquisition” (New Course) 
 

Motion made (Shaw) and seconded (Jirau Arroyo) to consider.  Angela Vietto presented the proposal 
and answered questions from the committee.  Following discussion, the proposal was approved with 
minor revisions.  (17-0) 
 
24.03 ENG 5021, “Responding to and Evaluating Student Writing” (New Course) 

 
Motion made (Pellizzeri) and seconded (Jacobsen) to consider.  Angela Vietto presented the proposal 
and answered questions from the committee.  Following discussion, the proposal was approved with 
minor revisions.  (18-0) 
 
24.04 ENG 5022, “Grammar and the Teaching of Writing” (New Course) 

 
Motion made (Richardson) and seconded (Wixson) to consider.  Angela Vietto presented the proposal 
and answered questions from the committee.  Following discussion, the proposal was approved with 
minor revisions.  (18-0) 
 

Sanghoon Kang departed the meeting at 3:28 pm. 
 
 
 
 



24.05 BA in English (Revised Program) 
 
Motion made (Jacobsen) and seconded (Jirau Arroyo) to consider.  Melissa Caldwell presented the 
proposal and answered questions from the committee.  Following discussion, the proposal was 
approved as submitted.  (17-0) 
 
24.06 Graduate Certificate in the Teaching of Writing (Revised Program) 
 
Motion made (Cooper) and seconded (Ashley) to consider.  Marjorie Worthington presented the 
proposal and answered questions from the committee.  Following discussion, the proposal was 
approved as submitted.  (17-0) 
 

 
IV. Other Business 

 
None. 
 

V. Adjournment 
 
On the motion of Cooper and the second of Pellizzeri, the meeting was adjourned at 3:35 p.m. 

 
Minutes taken by Michael Cornebise and prepared by Chris Mitchell 
 
Approved by CLASCC: October 18, 2023 









































Eastern Illinois University 
New/Revised Course Proposal Format 

(Approved by CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21) 

Banner/Catalog Information (Coversheet) 

1. __X_New Course or _____Revision of Existing Course

2. Course prefix and number: ENG 5021

3. Short title: Evaluating Student Writing

4. Long title: Responding to and Evaluating Student Writing

5. Hours per week: _3_ Class      __0_ Lab      _3__ Credit

6. Terms: ___ Fall     ___ Spring     ___ Summer     _X_ On demand

7. Initial term: __ Fall     ___ Spring     _X_ Summer     Year: _2024_____

Catalog course description: Graduate seminar that explores, analyzes, and synthesizes diverse 
perspectives of how to effectively provide feedback and evaluate student writing.  

8. Course attributes:

General education component: NA________________________________________________

___ Cultural diversity ___ Honors  _X_ Writing centered     __ Writing intensive  ___Writing active

___ Department Capstone as Senior Seminar

9. Instructional delivery
Type of Course:

_X_ Lecture     ___ Lab     ___ Lecture/lab combined     ___ Independent study/research

___ Internship     ___ Performance     ___ Practicum/clinical  ___ Other, specify: ________________

Mode(s) of Delivery:

_X_ Face to Face      X_ Online Synchronous  _X_ Online Asynchronous                ___ Study Abroad

___ Hybrid, specify approximate amount of on-line and face-to-face
instruction__________________

10. Course(s) to be deleted from the catalog once this course is approved: None

11. Equivalent course(s): ________________________________________________________

a. Are students allowed to take equivalent course(s) for credit?   ___ Yes     ___ No

12. Prerequisite(s): None

a. Can prerequisite be taken concurrently? __ Yes     ___ No

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-04 103123



b. Minimum grade required for the prerequisite course(s)?  ___

c. Use Banner coding to enforce prerequisite course(s)?   ___ Yes     ___ No

d. Who may waive prerequisite(s)?

___ No one     ___ Chair     ___ Instructor     ___ Advisor     ___ Other (specify)

13. Co-requisite(s):  None

14. Enrollment restrictions

a. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may take the course: _____________

b. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may not take the course: ___________

15. Repeat status: _X_ May not be repeated     ___ May be repeated once with credit

16. Enter the limit, if any, on hours which may be applied to a major or minor: ___

17. Grading methods:   _X_ Standard     ___ CR/NC     __ Audit     ___ ABC/NC

18. Special grading provisions:

___ Grade for course will not count in a student’s grade point average.

___ Grade for course will not count in hours toward graduation.

___ Grade for course will be removed from GPA if student already has credit for or is registered in:
________________________________________________________________

___ Credit hours for course will be removed from student’s hours toward graduation if student
already has credit for or is registered in: ____________________________________

19. Additional costs to students:
Supplemental Materials or Software_____________________________________

Course Fee _X_No ___Yes, Explain if yes________________________________

20. Community college transfer:

___ A community college course may be judged equivalent.

_X_ A community college may not be judged equivalent.

Note: Upper division credit (3000+) will not be granted for a community college course, even if the
content is judged to be equivalent.

Rationale, Justifications, and Assurances (Part I) 

1. ___Course is required for the major(s) of ____________________

___Course is required for the minor(s) of ____________________

___Course is required for the certificate program(s) of ______________



_X_ Course is used as an elective 

2. Rationale for proposal:

This course was first taught in a face-to-face special-topics graduate seminar (ENG 5011) for the
Composition and Rhetoric concentration in the M.A. in English over a decade ago and now is being
taught every three years during the summer. Because it is a popular topic, there has always been a
wait list for graduate students wanting to explore the research related to the response to and
evaluation of student writing. Making it a separate course from ENG 5011 will signal the importance
of proper response to and evaluation of student writing, which is often called the hidden teaching of
any writing course and the most time-consuming aspect of being a writing teacher. The course
focuses on the craft of commenting on, evaluating, conferencing, and grading student writing, and
the course applies to anyone who teaches writing at the high school and college level. In addition,
the department has the opportunity to teach it on a more regular basis (fall or spring semester) for
our growing online graduate program that attracts middle school and high school English teachers
pursuing their M.A. in English.

3. Justifications for (answer N/A if not applicable)

Similarity to other courses: N/A

Prerequisites: N/A 

Co-requisites: N/A 

Enrollment restrictions: Students must be graduate students. 

Writing active, intensive, centered: Writing centered 

Capstone as Senior Seminar: N/A 

4. General education assurances (answer N/A if not applicable)

General education component: N/A

Curriculum: N/A 

Instruction: N/A 

Assessment: N/A 

5. Online/Hybrid delivery justification & assurances (answer N/A if not applicable)

Online or hybrid delivery justification: Offering this course online will allow us to meet the needs of
our graduate students more effectively. With our graduate program available completely online
(and enrollment growing), adding additional online offerings is necessary for meeting the demands
of this student population.
Instruction: Through the CMS (course management system), students will access assigned readings,
links to multimedia, graded weekly discussion threads, other written assignments, rubrics, and an
electronic dropbox to submit their work. Students will also use a CMS to access lectures via
presentation software or learning modules that contain recorded lectures using multimedia
software.
Integrity: To ensure the integrity of the written work, students can be required to submit their
writing projects through a plagiarism identification system. Academic integrity is discussed in the
syllabus, and students will be evaluated through rigorous assessment methods. Discussions may use
a face-to-face format, use web-conferencing software, and/or take place on discussion boards.
Interaction: Student-instructor interaction will take place via email, the CMS’s discussion board, and
through comments on student writing projects and written responses. In addition, synchronous
office hours will be held during which students can contact instructor by phone or via the chat mode
supported by a CMS. Synchronous course periods are also possible through other online



communication venues. Student-student interaction will take place on discussion boards, email, 
through peer review of essay assignments, and through several small-group assignments for which 
students will be able to use the chat mode supported by a CMS.  

Model Syllabus (Part II)  

Please include the following information: 

1. Course number and title.
ENG 5021: Responding to and Evaluating Student Writing

2. Catalog description.
Graduate seminar that explores, analyzes, and synthesizes diverse perspectives of how to effectively
provide feedback and evaluate student writing.

3. Learning objectives.

Participants will attain the Graduate Goals for Learning: 
1. A depth of content knowledge. (Reading Assignments)
2. Critical thinking and problem solving skills (Writing Assignments)
3. Effective oral and written communication skills. (Presentations and online discussions)
4. Evidence of advanced scholarship through research and/or creative activity. (Research Essay)
5. Ethical and professional responsibility (Discussion topics)

Participants will… 

 Demonstrate knowledge about writing pedagogy and effective commenting and evaluating
strategies (Writing Assignments)

 Explore and question ideas and arguments about transfer of learning, classroom management
techniques, and response/evaluation of student writing (Reading and Writing Assignments)

 Reflect on current practices in writing classrooms and experiences in classrooms (In-person and
Online Discussions)

 Connect disciplinary knowledge to specific professional contexts (Writing Assignments)
 Analyze the arguments, evidence, assumptions, and research methodologies of scholarship

(Writing Assignments)
 Evaluate and critique scholars’ arguments based on the efficacy of their evidence, assumptions,

and research methodologies (Writing Assignments and Presentations)
 Produce a cohesive and persuasive philosophy of responding to and evaluating student writing

(Writing Assignments)

4. Course materials.
 Evaluating Writing, Eds. Cooper and Odell
 Key Works on Teacher Response, Ed. Straub
 Articles, websites, and other materials available via D2L

5. Weekly outline of content.

Unit 1: Responding to Student Writing—Principles & Methods 
Hesse, “13 Ways of Looking at Responding to Student Writing” 
Memo of Introduction due 
View Beyond the Red Ink 



View Across the Drafts 
Sommers, “Revision Strategies of Student Writers and Experienced Adult Writers” 
Knoblauch and Brannon, “Teacher Commentary on Student Writing”  
Ziv, “The Effect of Teacher Comments on the Writing of Four College Freshmen”  
Lunsford and Straub, “Twelve Readers Reading” 
Connors and Lunsford, “Teachers’ Rhetorical Comments on Student Papers”  
Smith, “The Genre of the End Comment” 
Elbow, “Ranking, Evaluating, and Liking” 
Sommers, “Responding to Student Writing” 
Baker, et al., “Transforming the Feedback Paradigm” 
Daily discussion forum posts and/or in-class discussion and analytic memos 

Unit 2: Foundations of Composition & Round 1 of Commenting 
#Bitzer, “The Rhetorical Situation” 
Murray, “Teach Writing as Process not Product” 
Round 1 of Commenting on Sample Student Papers  
Daily discussion forum posts and/or in-class discussion and analytic memos 

Unit 3: Considering Error 
Williams, “The Phenomenology of Error” 
Research Question/s due 
Diederich, “In Praise of Praise” 
Draft of Rubric & Rationale due 11am CT 
Haswell, “Minimal Marking” 
Ransdall, “Directive Versus Facilitative Commentary” 
Blauuw-Hara, “Why Our Students Need Instruction in Grammar” 
Daily discussion forum posts and/or in-class discussion and analytic memos 

Unit 4: Thinking about Paragraphs & Formulas 
Braddock, “The Frequency and Placement of Topic Sentences in Expository Prose” 
Wiley, “The Popularity of Formulaic Writing” 
Duncan, “Whatever Happened to the Paragraph?” 
Rubric & Rationale due 
Draft of Research Project due 
Daily discussion forum posts and/or in-class discussion and analytic memos 

Unit 5: Principles & Methods Revisited   
Elbow, “The Teacherless Writing Class”  
Fredrick, “StopThinkGrade” 
Boynton, “See Me” 
Round 2 of Commenting on Sample Student Papers 
Research Project due 
O’Neill and Mathison Fife, “Listening to Students” 
Mellon and Sommers, “Audiotaped Response” 
Daily discussion forum posts and/or in-class discussion and analytic memos 

Unit 6: Considering L2 Learners & Dialectical Interference 
#Reid, “’Eye’ Learners and ‘Ear’ Learners” 



Draft of Philosophy due 
Land Jr. and Whitley, “Evaluating Second-Language Essays in Composition” 
View Writing Across Borders 
Ball, “Evaluating the Writing of Culturally and Linguistically Diverse Students” 
Daily discussion forum posts and/or in-class discussion and analytic memos 

Module 7: Wrapping It Up 
Synthesizing sources and practices reflection work 
Strengthening and changing practices reflection work 
Philosophy due 
Reflection Memo due 

6. Assignments and evaluation, including weights for final course grade.
The assignments and exercises below reflect an online course. In a face-to-face course, point totals for
“online discussion topics” would shift to a participation grade and analytic-response memos.

Online or In-person Discussion Topics 35% 
Discussion posts and follow-up posts related to each module 
Draft Deadlines  or Peer Review  10% 
Major writing assignments (below) requires full drafts for commentary before they are submitted or 
there are points put toward peer review work via a writing process grade 
Shorter Writing Assignments 5% 
Memo of Introduction, Research Question, and Reflection Memo 
Presentations 10% 
Major Writing Assignments 40% 
Rubric & Rationale, Research Project, and Philosophy of Responding to & Evaluating Student Writing 

7. Grading scale.
A = 100-90%, B = 89-80%, C = 79-70%, D = 69-60%, F = 59% or less

Date approved by the department or school:  9/20/23 
Date approved by the college curriculum committee:  10/4/23 
Date approved by the Honors Council (if this is an honors course):  
Date approved by CAA:    CGS:   



Eastern Illinois University 
New/Revised Course Proposal Format 

(Approved by CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21) 

Banner/Catalog Information (Coversheet) 

1. _X__New Course or _____Revision of Existing Course

2. Course prefix and number: ENG 5022

3. Short title: Grammar and the Teaching of Writing

4. Long title: Grammar/Linguistics and the Teaching of Writing

5. Hours per week: _3_ Class      _0__ Lab      _3__ Credit

6. Terms: ___ Fall     ___ Spring     ___ Summer     _X_ On demand

7. Initial term: ___ Fall     ___ Spring     _X_ Summer     Year: _2024_____

8. Catalog course description: Graduate seminar that explores, analyzes, and synthesizes research and
perspectives about grammar/linguistics/style and the teaching of writing.

9. Course attributes:

General education component: N/A______________________________________________

___ Cultural diversity ___ Honors  _X_ Writing centered     ___ Writing intensive  ___Writing active

___ Department Capstone as Senior Seminar

10. Instructional delivery
Type of Course:

_X_ Lecture     ___ Lab     ___ Lecture/lab combined     ___ Independent study/research

___ Internship     ___ Performance     ___ Practicum/clinical  ___ Other, specify: ________________

Mode(s) of Delivery:

_X_ Face to Face      X_ Online Synchronous  _X_ Online Asynchronous                ___ Study Abroad

___ Hybrid, specify approximate amount of on-line and face-to-face
instruction__________________

11. Course(s) to be deleted from the catalog once this course is approved: None

12. Equivalent course(s): ________________________________________________________

a. Are students allowed to take equivalent course(s) for credit?   ___ Yes     ___ No

13. Prerequisite(s): None

a. Can prerequisite be taken concurrently? ___ Yes     ___ No

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-05 103123



b.  Minimum grade required for the prerequisite course(s)?  ___ 

c. Use Banner coding to enforce prerequisite course(s)?   ___ Yes     ___ No 

d. Who may waive prerequisite(s)?  

___ No one     ___ Chair     ___ Instructor     ___ Advisor     ___ Other (specify) 

14. Co-requisite(s): None 

15. Enrollment restrictions 

a. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may take the course: _____________ 

b. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may not take the course: ___________ 

16. Repeat status: _X_ May not be repeated     ___ May be repeated once with credit 

17. Enter the limit, if any, on hours which may be applied to a major or minor: ___ 

18. Grading methods:   _X_ Standard     ___ CR/NC     __ Audit     ___ ABC/NC 

19. Special grading provisions: 

___ Grade for course will not count in a student’s grade point average. 

___ Grade for course will not count in hours toward graduation. 

___ Grade for course will be removed from GPA if student already has credit for or is registered in: 
________________________________________________________________ 

___ Credit hours for course will be removed from student’s hours toward graduation if student 
already has credit for or is registered in: ____________________________________ 

20. Additional costs to students:  
Supplemental Materials or Software_____________________________________ 

Course Fee _X_No ___Yes, Explain if yes________________________________ 

21. Community college transfer: 

___ A community college course may be judged equivalent. 

_X_ A community college may not be judged equivalent. 

Note: Upper division credit (3000+) will not be granted for a community college course, even if the 
content is judged to be equivalent. 

 

Rationale, Justifications, and Assurances (Part I)  

1. ___Course is required for the major(s) of ____________________ 

___Course is required for the minor(s) of ____________________ 

___Course is required for the certificate program(s) of ______________ 



_X_ Course is used as an elective 

2. Rationale for proposal : 

This course has been taught frequently in a special-topics graduate seminar (either ENG 5011 or 
5091) for the Composition and Rhetoric concentration in the M.A. in English and now is being taught 
every three years during the summer. Because it is a popular topic, there has always been a wait list 
for graduate students wanting to explore the research related grammar and the teaching of 
writing—whether the topic focuses on teaching grammar in context (see sample syllabus), linguistic 
bias/justice concerns, rhetorical grammar and style, or teaching English as a second language. 
Making it a separate course from ENG 5011 or 5091 will signal the importance addressing 
grammar/linguistics/style effectively when teaching writing. In addition, the department has the 
opportunity to teach it on a more regular basis (fall or spring semester) for our growing online 
graduate program that attracts middle school and high school English teachers pursuing their M.A. 
in English.  
 

3. Justifications for (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Similarity to other courses: N/A 

Prerequisites: N/A 

Co-requisites: N/A 

Enrollment restrictions: Students must be graduate students.  

Writing active, intensive, centered: Writing centered 

Capstone as Senior Seminar: N/A 

4. General education assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

General education component: N/A 

Curriculum: N/A 

Instruction: N/A 

Assessment: N/A 

5. Online/Hybrid delivery justification & assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Online or hybrid delivery justification: Offering this course online will allow us to meet the needs of 
our graduate students more effectively. With our graduate program available completely online 
(and enrollment growing), adding additional online offerings is necessary for meeting the demands 
of this student population.  
Instruction: Through the CMS (course management system), students will access assigned readings, 
links to multimedia, graded weekly discussion threads, other written assignments, rubrics, and an 
electronic dropbox to submit their work. Students will also use a CMS to access lectures via 
presentation software or learning modules that contain recorded lectures using multimedia 
software.  
Integrity: To ensure the integrity of the written work, students can be required to submit their 
writing projects through a plagiarism identification system. Academic integrity is discussed in the 
syllabus, and students will be evaluated through rigorous assessment methods. Discussions may use 
a face-to-face format, use web-conferencing software, and/or take place on discussion boards.  
Interaction: Student-instructor interaction will take place via email, the CMS’s discussion board, and 
through comments on student writing projects and written responses. In addition, synchronous 
office hours will be held during which students can contact instructor by phone or via the chat mode 
supported by a CMS. Synchronous course periods are also possible through other online 
communication venues. Student-student interaction will take place on discussion boards, email, 



through peer review of essay assignments, and through several small-group assignments for which 
students will be able to use the chat mode supported by a CMS.  
 

Model Syllabus (Part II)  

Please include the following information:  

1. Course number and title 
ENG 5022: Grammar/Linguistics and the Teaching of Writing 

 
2. Catalog description 
Graduate seminar that explores, analyzes, and synthesizes research and perspectives about 
grammar/linguistics/style and the teaching of writing. 
 
3. Learning objectives. 
 
 
Participants will attain the Graduate Goals for Learning: 

1. A depth of content knowledge. (Reading Assignments) 
2. Critical thinking and problem solving skills (Writing Assignments) 
3. Effective oral and written communication skills. (Presentations and online discussions) 
4. Evidence of advanced scholarship through research and/or creative activity. (Research Essay) 
5. Ethical and professional responsibility (Discussion topics) 

 
Participants will… 

 Demonstrate knowledge of grammar/linguistics/style (Online and In-person Discussions, 
Presentations) 

 Explore and question ideas about grammar/linguistics/style and how it relates to classroom 
instruction (Discussions and Writing Assignments) 

 Reflect on current practices in writing classrooms and experiences in classrooms (Discussions) 
 Connect disciplinary knowledge to specific professional contexts (Writing Assignments and 

Presentations) 
 Analyze the arguments, evidence, assumptions, and research methodologies of scholarship 

(Writing Assignments) 
 Evaluate and critique scholars’ arguments based on the efficacy of their evidence, assumptions, 

and research methodologies (Writing Assignments) 
 Produce researched syntheses and arguments related to grammar/linguistics/style and 

classroom instruction (Writing Assignments) 
 
4. Course materials. 
 Noguchi, Rei R. Grammar and the Teaching of Writing: Limits and Possibilities. 
 Weaver, Constance. Teaching Grammar in Context.  
 Articles, websites, and other materials available via D2L 

 
5. Weekly outline of content. 
This sample syllabus reflects a focus on teaching grammar in context of student writing. As stated in the 
rationale, the course could focus on other topics related to grammar/linguistics and the teaching of 
writing, such linguistic justice, rhetorical grammar and style, and teaching English as a second language. 
 
Unit 1: Grammar’s Historical Context & Writing Instruction 



Perrin “The Remedial Racket”  
Mills, “Writing as Process” 
Connors, “Mechanical Correctness as a Focus in Composition Instruction” 
Memo of Introduction 
Bartholomae, “The Study of Error”   
Hartwell, “Grammar, Grammars, and the Teaching of Grammar” 
Lunsford and Lunsford, “‘Mistakes Are a Fact of Life’: A National Comparative Study” 
Smagorinsky, et al. “Teaching Grammar and Writing: A Beginning Teacher’s Dilemma” 
Daily discussion forum posts and/or in-class discussion and analytic memos 

Unit 2: Core Texts 
Noguchi, Grammar and the Teaching of Writing: Limits and Possibilities 
Weaver, Teaching Grammar in Context 
Daily discussion forum posts and/or in-class discussion and analytic memos 

Unit 3: L2 and Gen 1.5 Writers 
CCCC Statement on Second-Language Writing and Multilingual Writers 
Silva, “On the Ethical Treatment of ESL Writers” 
Severino, “The Sociopolitical Implications of Response to Second-Language and Second-Dialect Writing” 
Schreiber and Worden, “‘Nameless, Faceless People’: How Other Teachers’ Expectations Influence Our 
Pedagogy” 
Kei Matsuda and Silva, “Cross-Cultural Composition: Mediated Integration of U.S. and International 
Students” 
Daily discussion forum posts and/or in-class discussion and analytic memos 

Unit 4: Approaches & Applications 
Williams, “The Phenomenology of Error” 
Devet, ““Welcoming Grammar Back into the Writing Classroom” 
Grammar-Related Lesson Plan 1 due 
Sams, “How to Teach Grammar, Analytical Thinking, and Writing” 
Corbett, “Teaching Style” 
Johnson, “Ancient and Contemporary Compositions That ‘Come Alive’: Clarity as Pleasure, Sound as 
Magic” 
Micciche, “Making a Case for Rhetorical Grammar” 
Grammar-Related Lesson Plan 2 due 
Meyer et al., “Grammar in Context: How and Why” 
Martinsen, “The Tower of Babel and the Teaching of Grammar: Writing Instruction for a New Century” 
Connors, “The Erasure of the Sentence” 
Morenberg, et al., “Sentence Combining at the College Level: An Experimental Study”  
Rose, “Down from the Haymow: One Hundred Years of Sentence-Combining” 
Dean, “Sentence Combining: Building Skills Through Reading and Writing” 
Grammar-Related Lesson Plan 3 due 
Daily discussion forum posts and/or in-class discussion and analytic memos 

Unit 5: Responding to Errors 
Haswell, “The Complexities of Response to Student Writing” 
Harris and Rowan, “Explaining Grammatical Concepts” 
Horner, “Rethinking the ‘Sociality’ of Error: Teaching Editing as Negotiation” 
Heyden, “Speaking My Mind: ‘See Everything, Overlook a Great Deal, Correct a Little’: Rethinking the 
role of Grammar in Writing Instruction” 



Draft of Philosophy due 
Sommers, “Revision Strategies of Student Writers and Experienced Adult Writers” 
Daily discussion forum posts and/or in-class discussion and analytic memos 
Philosophy of Teaching Grammar due 
Reflection Memo due 

6. Assignments and evaluation, including weights for final course grade. 
The assignments and exercises below reflect an online course. In a face-to-face course, point totals for 
“online discussion topics” would shift to a participation grade and analytic-response memos.  
 
Online Discussion Topics      35% 
Discussion posts and follow-up posts related to each module 
Draft Deadlines  or Peer Review     5% 
The philosophy requires a full drafts for commentary before they are submitted or there are points put 
toward peer review work via a writing process grade 
Shorter Writing Assignments     5%    
Memo of Introduction and Reflection Memo     
Presentations       10%   
Major Writing Assignments     45%   
Grammar Lesson Plans 1, 2, and 3 & Philosophy of Teaching Grammar 
7. Grading scale. 
A = 100-90%, B = 89-80%, C = 79-70%, D = 69-60%, F = 59% or less 
 
Date approved by the department or school:  9/20/23 
Date approved by the college curriculum committee:  10/4/23 
Date approved by the Honors Council (if this is an honors course):   
Date approved by CAA:    CGS:   
 
 
 
 

 

 

 



Program Proposal:  Master of Arts in Teaching/Special Education 

Department of Special Education 

Effective Date:  Summer 2024, pending IBHE and ISBE approval 

Program Mission 

The mission of the Master of Arts in Teaching for Special Education is to provide an accessible, 
efficient route to teacher licensure for candidates who possess a qualifying undergraduate or 
graduate degree.  The online program format is conducive to place-bound and non-traditional 
candidates who would not be able to complete a traditional, on-campus program.  The full-year 
residency enables candidates to select unpaid, paid, or third party funded placements in their 
local communities. 

Accreditation 

Accreditation is consistent with existing initial teacher licensure programs i.e., either through 
the Council for Accreditation of Educator Preparation (CAEP) or an individual program’s 
Specialized Professional Association (SPA).  Additionally, the program is approved by the Illinois 
State Board of Education for initial licensure. 

Admission Requirements 

To be eligible for degree candidacy, applicants must meet all of the requirements for admission 
to the Graduate School (see “Admission to Graduate Degree and Certificate Programs”).  
Additional requirements include: (a) an undergraduate or graduate degree with a minimum 2.75 
GPA; (b) a formal letter of application summarizing the candidate’s background, motivation for 
entering the teaching profession, and experience in working in public schools (if any); (c) 
passage of a criminal history background check through the College of Education’s designated 
vendor; (d) submission of program acceptance letter acknowledging all program requirements. 

Degree Audit 

The graduate plan of study is the EIU Degree Audit, which is generated automatically in the 
Degree Works systems at the time of degree candidacy. Modifications of the standard EIU 
Degree Audit are submitted by the graduate coordinator to the certification officer in the 
Graduate School at the time modifications are approved. The Degree Audit serves as an 
unofficial summary of requirements for the program. Degree and certificate candidates are 
advised to review the comprehensive summary of Degree Audit process specified in 
“Requirements for All Degree and Certificate Candidates” section of the Graduate Catalog. 
Individual programs may require candidates to submit plans of study in addition to the Degree 
Audit; candidates should consult with the program coordinator. 

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-06



Degree Requirements 

Degree requirements include those outlined for master’s degrees by the Graduate School (see 
“Requirements for the Master’s Degree”). 

Curriculum for the Master of Arts in teaching/Special Education 

Total Credits:  36 

Required Courses (Credits: 36) 

• SPE 5000 Residency I in Special Education (6 s.h.)

• SPE 5001 Residency II in Special Education (6 s.h.)

• SPE 5002 Characteristics and Legal Issues in Special Education (3 s.h.)

• SPE 5003 Families and Collaboration in Special Education (3 s.h.)

• SPE 5004 Assessment and Methods for Teaching Students with Exceptional Learning
Needs (3 s.h.)

• SPE 5005 Instructional Strategies and Assessment Approaches for Literacy and Numeracy
for students with Exceptional Learning Needs (3 s.h.)

• SPE 5006 Classroom and Behavior Management in Special Education (3 s.h.)

• SPE 5007 Characteristics, Assessment and Transition Planning for Students with Intensive
Learning Needs (3 s.h.)

• EDU 5520 High Quality Instruction (3 s.h.)

• EDF 5500 Theory to Practice:  Curriculum Development (3 s.h.)

Concentration and Options 

There are no concentrations or options in this program. 

Electives 

There are no electives in this program. 

Thesis, Capstone, Internship 

All students must complete a two-semester residency (SPE 5000 and SPE 5001) for 12 semester 
hours of credit. 

Graduate Assistantships 

No graduate assistantships are available or associated with this program. 



Kathryn Havercroft, Department Chair, Special Education 

Approved September 1, 2023; revisions approved 9/29/23 

Special Education Department Curriculum Committee 

Approved September 20, 2023; revisions approved 9/29/23 

College of Education Curriculum Committee 

Approved October 2, 2023 

Council on Graduate Studies 

Council on Teacher Education  Contingent on CGS approval



Eastern Illinois University 
New/Revised Course Proposal Format 

(Approved by CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21) 

Banner/Catalog Information (Coversheet) 

1. __X__New Course or _____Revision of Existing Course

2. Course prefix and number: __SPE 5000

3. Short title: Residency I

4. Long title: Residency I in Special Education

5. Hours per week: __Arr  Class      _Arr  Lab      __6_ Credits

6. Terms: ___ Fall     ___ Spring     ___ Summer     _X__ On demand

7. Initial term:  X  Fall     ___ Spring     ___ Summer     Year: __2024____

8. Catalog course description:

SPE 5000 Residency I in Special Education

This course will focus on developing reflective practice of the special education teacher by

enhancing competencies in refining the delivery of instruction for students with exceptional learning

needs. Focus will be placed on assessing, designing, implementing, and evaluating lesson planning

and the implementation of instruction, devising, and implementing individualized education plans

and communication with families and colleagues.

9. Course attributes:

General education component: ______N/A___________________________________________

___ Cultural diversity ___ Honors  ___ Writing centered     ___ Writing intensive  ___Writing active

___ Department Capstone as Senior Seminar

10. Instructional delivery

Type of Course:

___ Lecture     ___ Lab     ___ Lecture/lab combined     ___ Independent study/research

___ Internship     ___ Performance     _X  Practicum/clinical  ___ Other, specify: ________________

Mode(s) of Delivery:

___ Face to Face      _X Online Synchronous*  __X_ Online Asynchronous                ___ Study Abroad

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-07



 

 

___ Hybrid, specify approximate amount of on-line and face-to-face instruction_________________ 

*Individual observations and meetings will be required 

11. Course(s) to be deleted from the catalog once this course is approved: ____N/A_____________ 

12. Equivalent course(s): ____None_____________________________________________ 

a. Are students allowed to take equivalent course(s) for credit?   ___ Yes     __X_ No 

13. Prerequisite(s): Admission to Special Education MAT program or permission of the Department 
Chair 

a. Can prerequisite be taken concurrently? ___ Yes      _     No  __X     no course pre-req 

b.  Minimum grade required for the prerequisite course(s)?  __N/A_ no course pre-req 

c. Use Banner coding to enforce prerequisite course(s)?     X     Yes     ___ No        

d. Who may waive prerequisite(s)?  

___ No one     _X__ Chair     ___ Instructor     ___ Advisor     ___ Other (specify) 

14. Co-requisite(s): ______N/A________________________________________________ 

15. Enrollment restrictions 

a. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may take the course: __MAT in SPE only 

b. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may not take the course: _No one but those 
listed in 15a. 

16. Repeat status: __X_ May not be repeated     ___ May be repeated once with credit 

17. Enter the limit, if any, on hours which may be applied to a major or minor: _6__ 

18. Grading methods:   _X__ Standard     ___ CR/NC     __ Audit     ___  ABC/NC 

19. Special grading provisions: 

N/A___ Grade for course will not count in a student’s grade point average. 

N/A ___ Grade for course will not count in hours toward graduation. 

N/A Grade for course will be removed from GPA if student already has credit for or is registered in:_ 

N/A ___ Credit hours for course will be removed from student’s hours toward graduation if student 
already has credit for or is registered in: ____________________________________ 

20. Additional costs to students:  
Supplemental Materials or Software: 



 

 

Course Fee _   _No _X__Yes, Explain if yes  Student fee of $125 will cover Equipment/Software for 
Distance Supervision, Coaching, and Evaluation 

 

21. Community college transfer: 

___ A community college course may be judged equivalent. 

_X__ A community college may not be judged equivalent. 

Note: Upper division credit (3000+) will not be granted for a community college course, even if the 
content is judged to be equivalent. 

 

Rationale, Justifications, and Assurances (Part I)  

1. _X_Course is required for the major(s) of _Special Education Master of Arts in Teaching (MAT) 

___Course is required for the minor(s) of ____________________ 

___Course is required for the certificate program(s) of ______________ 

  

2. Rationale for proposal : 

This course provides the supervised clinical experience needed to meet the professional standards 

required for teacher candidates in Illinois seeking an initial Professional Educators License (PEL) with 

an endorsement as a Learning Behavior Specialist I (LBSI). Candidates majoring in Special Education 

must demonstrate knowledge and skills acquired in this course to successfully educate students 

with exceptional learning needs as licensed professionals in the field. This course will allow 

candidates to apply theory to practice in the first of two semester-long residency experiences. 

 

3. Justifications for (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Similarity to other courses: N/A 

Prerequisites: Candidates must meet minimum requirements for admission to the College of 

Education Master of Arts in Teaching in agreement with and as outlined by the Illinois State Board of 

Education for those seeking certification through entitlement to teach in Illinois. 

Co-requisites: N/A 

Enrollment restrictions: Candidates must meet minimum requirements for admission to the College 

of Education Master of Arts in Teaching in agreement with and as outlined by the Illinois State Board 

of Education for those seeking certification through entitlement to teach in Illinois.  

Writing active, intensive, centered: N/A  



 

 

4. General education assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

General education component: N/A 

Curriculum:  N/A 

Instruction:  N/A 

Assessment: N/A 

5. Online/Hybrid delivery justification & assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Online or hybrid delivery justification:  

This course is being developed to address the teacher shortage in special education in Illinois 

and across the United States. The course is intended to serve a population of candidates that 

cannot attend classes on campus and online delivery makes the course accessible to 

candidates who work in schools and/or those who are career changers.   
 
Instruction:  

Candidates will be able to access audio and/or video recordings and other instructional 

materials and resources through EIU’s online learning management system. 

Assignments/projects, discussion postings, reflections and a weekly mentor-mentee log will 

be completed or submitted within the learning management system. Feedback from the 

instructor will be provided through the LMS, email, online discussion boards, and 

synchronous video conference. As this course is a clinical experience, much of the 

instruction and evaluation will be individualized.  Candidates will be required to complete 

formal observations by providing video access to their instruction and meet with instructor 

(supervisor) to debrief.  Evaluation, coaching, and mentoring will be completed through 

asynchronous (instructor feedback/responses) and synchronous (live individual 

meetings/sessions).  Seminar attendance will be required.  Faculty members who teach this 

course will have completed OCDI training or equivalent.  

Integrity:  

Syllabus content includes statements regarding academic dishonesty and plagiarism as well as 

adherence to dispositional professional ethical standards required of all College of Education 

majors. To deter dishonesty, the EIU learning management system includes software for 

detection of dishonesty during exams and plagiarism when documents are submitted.  
 

Interaction:  

The instructor and students will be able to communicate with one another through email, 

discussion boards, and collaborative functions provided by the learning management system. 

The instructor will encourage candidates to meet for office hours and individual meetings 

about formal evaluations will be required. Candidates will be encouraged to collaborate with 

one another through the learning management system. Interaction with instructor will be 

frequent and utilize various modes of communication. 

 



 

 

 

Model Syllabus (Part II)  

Please include the following information:  

1. Course  

SPE 5000 Residency I in Special Education (Arr-Arr-6). 

2. Course Description: 

This course will focus on developing reflective practice of the special education teacher by enhancing 

competencies in refining the delivery of instruction for students with exceptional learning needs. Focus 

will be placed on assessing, designing, implementing, and evaluating lesson planning and the 

implementation of instruction, devising and implementing individualized education plans and 

communication with families and colleagues.   

3.  Learning Objectives for the Course 

1.  Candidates will apply research-based principles of student analysis, instructional planning, and 

assessment in the development of long (IEP and unit) and short-term plans (lesson). (Graduate Learning 

Goals 1, 2, 3, 4, 5)   

2.  Students will implement research-based, appropriate teaching and classroom management strategies 

in daily lessons. (Graduate Learning Goals 2, 3, 4, 5)   

3.  Students will critically and regularly reflect upon their experience; these reflections will be individual, 

with their residency supervisor, and with their peers in seminar settings. (Graduate Learning Goals 1, 2, 

3, 5)   

4.  Candidates will analyze their own knowledge, skills, and dispositions and engage in professional 

growth planning to strengthen those skills. (Graduate Learning Goals 1,2,3,4,5) 

 
Additional Standards Addressed in this Course: 

Illinois Teacher Prep initial All SPE Standards 
Illinois Teacher Prep LBSI Standards 
CEC Initial Standards 
CEC Advanced Standards 
Illinois Professional Educator Standards 
Illinois Social Emotional Learning Standards 
Illinois Culturally Responsive Teaching and Learning Standards 
InTASC Core 
 

 
 
 
4. Course Materials 



 

 

Required Texts: 

Hott, B. (Ed). (2023). Quality instruction and intervention: Strategies for secondary educators. Rowman  

& Littlefield. 

Polloway, E., Patton, J., Serna, L., & Bailey, J. (2022).  Strategies for teaching learners with special needs  

(12th ed.). Pearson. 

*Additional readings, videos, and other learning materials will be available via the LMS. 

 

6. Weekly Outline of Content 

Weeks Practicum On-Site 
15 Weeks 

Weeks 1-2 Introduction to the Course 
Establishing Your Classroom/Classroom Environment Considerations 
Assignment:  Rules and Routines 

Weeks 3-4 Curriculum Based Assessment 
Assignment:  CBA Due 

Weeks 5-6 Individualized Education Planning 
Specially Designed Instruction (SDI) 
Implementing Instructional Practices/Informal Evaluations 
*Meet with instructor after each Informal Eval. 

Weeks 7-8 Implementing Instruction/Informal Evaluations 
Assignment:  IEP Due 

Weeks 9-10 Implementing Instruction/Informal Evaluations 

Weeks 11-12 Implementing Instruction/Formal Evaluations 
*Meet with instructor after each Formal Eval. 

Weeks 13-14 Implementing Instruction/Formal Evaluations 

Weeks 15-16 Implementing Instruction/Formal Evaluations 
Assignment:  IEP Updates Due 
Exit Interviews Held 

 
*Weekly Lesson Plans will be required 
** Weekly Mentor Logs will be required 
 

 

6. Assignments and Evaluation, including weights for final course grade  

Readings: Candidates are expected to complete all readings for the course which are listed in the 
schedule and found in the issued textbooks or housed in the LMS.  
Related Course Learning Objectives:1,2,3,4 



Reflections: Candidates complete weekly reflections related to assessment, instruction, management, 
collaboration, and other topics as specified by the instructor (20%) 
Related Course Learning Objectives: 1,2,3,4 

A weekly mentor-mentee log will be maintained, submitted, and discussed with instructor (10%) 
Related Course Learning Objectives: 3,4 

Teaching Evaluations: Candidates will be informally evaluated at least 2 times during the semester and 
formally evaluated at least two times during the semester.  Feedback will be provided for informal 
evaluations while formal evaluations will result in a score of PASS/FAIL.  Candidates must PASS two 
formal evaluations to successfully complete the course.  Evaluations will NOT calculate into the grade 
earned in the course.   
Related Course Learning Objectives: 2,3,4 

Seminars will be held a minimum of 3 times across the semester and candidates will be expected to 

attend virtually.  These meetings will cover licensure requirements/processes, legal updates, best 

practices in collaboration, assessment, instruction, and management as well as ethical challenges and 

considerations. 

Individual Meetings with Instructor will be held at pre-determined intervals no less than 4 times across 
the semester.  Exit Interview will be held as a summative evaluation at the conclusion of the semester.  
(10%)  
Related Course Learning Objectives: 3,4 

Course Projects:  During the semester, candidates will complete two projects:  a Curriculum Based 
Assessment (CBA) on a group of students and the creation of an Individual Education Plan (IEP) for an 
individual student based on various data sources.  Following IEP implementation, the candidate will 
update the IEP including progress, data, recommendations for next steps, and a reflection addressing 
decision making along with needs for professional growth.  These are the major projects for this course; 
a corresponding department rubric will serve as the evaluation tool for each. (60%) 
Related Course Learning Objectives: 1,2,3,4 

*alternative/additional assignments may be added based upon candidate need

7. Grading Scale

A point scale is used.  Grades are determined by the number of points earned.  The following scale is used 

by the Department of Special Education faculty: 

90% or more of total points A 

80-89% of total points  B 

70-79% of total points  C 

60-69% of total points  D 

Less than 60% of total points F 

Date approved by the department or school:  9/20/2023 
Date approved by the college curriculum committee: 10/02/2023   council on teacher ed: 10/12/2023
Date approved by the Honors Council (if this is an honors course):   
Date approved by CAA:    CGS:   



NEW/REVISED COURSE PROPOSAL FORMAT (Approved by 

CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21, Effective SP 2022) 

Banner/Catalog Information (Coversheet) 

1. £ New Course  - or -  £ Revision of Existing Course

2. Course Prefix and Number:

3. Short title:

4. Long title:

5. Hours per week:   Class   Lab   Credit 

6. Terms:  £ Fall  £ Spring  £ Summer  £ On demand

7. Initial term:  £ Fall  £ Spring  £ Summer     Year:

8. Catalog course description:

9. Course attributes:

General education component:

£ Cultural diversity  £ Honors  £ Writing centered  £ Writing intensive

£ Writing active  £ Department Capstone as Senior Seminar

10. Instructional delivery

Type of Course:

£ Lecture  £ Lab   £ Lecture/lab combined  £ Independent study/research

£ Internship  £ Performance  £ Practicum/clinical  £ Other (Specify):

Mode(s) of Delivery:

£ Face to Face  £ Online Synchronous  £ Online Asynchronous  £ Study Abroad

£ Hybrid (Specify approximate amount of on-line and face-to-face instruction):

11. Course(s) to be deleted from the catalog once this course is approved:

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-08



12. Equivalent course(s):

a. Are students allowed to take equivalent course(s) for credit?  £ Yes  £ No

13. Prerequisite(s):

a. Can prerequisite(s) be taken concurrently?  £ Yes  £ No

b. Minimum grade required for the prerequisite course(s)?

c. Use Banner coding to enforce prerequisite course(s)?  £ Yes  £ No

d. Who may waive prerequisite(s)?

£ No One  £ Chair  £ Instructor  £ Advisor  £ Other (Specify):

14. Co-requisite(s):

15. Enrollment restrictions

a. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may take the course:

b. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may not take the course:

16. Repeat status:  £ May not be repeated  £ May be repeated once with credit

17. Enter the limit, if any, on hours which may be applied to a major or minor:

18. Grading methods:  £ Standard  £ CR/NC  £ Audit  £ ABC/NC

19. Special grading provisions:

£ Grade for course will not count in a student’s grade point average.

£ Grade for course will not count in hours toward graduation.

£ Grade for course will be removed from GPA if student already has credit for or is registered in:

£ Credit hours for course will be removed from student’s hours toward graduation if student already has credit   

     for or is registered in:  



 
20. Additional costs to students:  

Supplemental materials or software: 

Course Fee  £ No  £ Yes (Explain):  

21. Community college transfer: 

£ A community college course may be judged equivalent. 

£ A community college may not be judged equivalent. 

Note: Upper division credit (3000+) will not be granted for a community college course, even if the content is 

judged to be equivalent. 

Rationale, Justifications, and Assurances (Part 1) 

1. £ Course is required for the major(s) of: 

£ Course is required for the minor(s) of: 

£ Course is required for the certificate program(s) of: 

£ Course is used as an elective 

2. Rationale for proposal: 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Justifications for (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Similarity to other courses: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Prerequisites:  

 

 

 

 

 

Co-requisites:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Enrollment restrictions:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Writing active, intensive, centered:  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
4. General education assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

General education component: 

 

 

Curriculum:  

 

 

Instruction:  

 

 

Assessment: 

 

 

5. Online/hybrid delivery justification and assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Online or hybrid delivery justification:  

 

 

Instruction:  

 

 

Integrity:  

 

 

Interaction:  

 

 

 



Model Syllabus (Part II)  
Please include the following Information: 

1. Course number and title:

2. Catalog description:

3. Learning objectives:

4. Course materials:

5. Weekly outline of content:



6. Assignments and evaluation, including weights for final course grade:

7. Grading scale:

Date approved by the department or school:   

Date approved by the college curriculum committee:   

Date approved by the Honors Council (if this is an honors course): 

Date approved by CAA:           CGS:   

10/02/2023 council on teacher ed: 10/12/2023  



NEW/REVISED COURSE PROPOSAL FORMAT (Approved by 

CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21, Effective SP 2022) 

Banner/Catalog Information (Coversheet) 

1. £ New Course  - or -  £ Revision of Existing Course

2. Course Prefix and Number:

3. Short title:

4. Long title:

5. Hours per week:   Class   Lab   Credit 

6. Terms:  £ Fall  £ Spring  £ Summer  £ On demand

7. Initial term:  £ Fall  £ Spring  £ Summer     Year:

8. Catalog course description:

9. Course attributes:

General education component:

£ Cultural diversity  £ Honors  £ Writing centered  £ Writing intensive

£ Writing active  £ Department Capstone as Senior Seminar

10. Instructional delivery

Type of Course:

£ Lecture  £ Lab   £ Lecture/lab combined  £ Independent study/research

£ Internship  £ Performance  £ Practicum/clinical  £ Other (Specify):

Mode(s) of Delivery:

£ Face to Face  £ Online Synchronous  £ Online Asynchronous  £ Study Abroad

£ Hybrid (Specify approximate amount of on-line and face-to-face instruction):

11. Course(s) to be deleted from the catalog once this course is approved:

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-09



12. Equivalent course(s):

a. Are students allowed to take equivalent course(s) for credit?  £ Yes  £ No

13. Prerequisite(s):

a. Can prerequisite(s) be taken concurrently?  £ Yes  £ No

b. Minimum grade required for the prerequisite course(s)?

c. Use Banner coding to enforce prerequisite course(s)?  £ Yes  £ No

d. Who may waive prerequisite(s)?

£ No One  £ Chair  £ Instructor  £ Advisor  £ Other (Specify):

14. Co-requisite(s):

15. Enrollment restrictions

a. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may take the course:

b. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may not take the course:

16. Repeat status:  £ May not be repeated  £ May be repeated once with credit

17. Enter the limit, if any, on hours which may be applied to a major or minor:

18. Grading methods:  £ Standard  £ CR/NC  £ Audit  £ ABC/NC

19. Special grading provisions:

£ Grade for course will not count in a student’s grade point average.

£ Grade for course will not count in hours toward graduation.

£ Grade for course will be removed from GPA if student already has credit for or is registered in:

£ Credit hours for course will be removed from student’s hours toward graduation if student already has credit   

     for or is registered in:  



 
20. Additional costs to students:  

Supplemental materials or software: 

Course Fee  £ No  £ Yes (Explain):  

21. Community college transfer: 

£ A community college course may be judged equivalent. 

£ A community college may not be judged equivalent. 

Note: Upper division credit (3000+) will not be granted for a community college course, even if the content is 

judged to be equivalent. 

Rationale, Justifications, and Assurances (Part 1) 

1. £ Course is required for the major(s) of: 

£ Course is required for the minor(s) of: 

£ Course is required for the certificate program(s) of: 

£ Course is used as an elective 

2. Rationale for proposal: 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Justifications for (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Similarity to other courses: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Prerequisites:  

 

 

 

 

 

Co-requisites:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Enrollment restrictions:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Writing active, intensive, centered:  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
4. General education assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

General education component: 

 

 

Curriculum:  

 

 

Instruction:  

 

 

Assessment: 

 

 

5. Online/hybrid delivery justification and assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Online or hybrid delivery justification:  

 

 

Instruction:  

 

 

Integrity:  

 

 

Interaction:  

 

 

 



 
Model Syllabus (Part II)  
Please include the following Information:  

1. Course number and title: 

 

 

2. Catalog description: 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Learning objectives: 

 

 

 

 

 

4. Course materials: 

 

 

 

 

5. Weekly outline of content: 

 

 

 

 

 



6. Assignments and evaluation, including weights for final course grade:

7. Grading scale:

Date approved by the department or school:   

Date approved by the college curriculum committee:   

Date approved by the Honors Council (if this is an honors course):  

Date approved by CAA:           CGS:   

10/02/2023 council on teacher ed: 10/12/2023 



Eastern Illinois University 
New/Revised Course Proposal Format 

(Approved by CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21) 

Banner/Catalog Information (Coversheet) 

1. __X__New Course or _____Revision of Existing Course

2. Course prefix and number: __SPE 5003 ___________________________________________

3. Short title: _______Families and Collab in SPE_________________________________

4. Long title: ________Families and Collaboration in Special Education_____________________

5. Hours per week: _3__ Class      __0_ Lab      __3_ Credit

6. Terms: ___ Fall     ___ Spring     ___ Summer     _X__ On demand

7. Initial term: ___ Fall     ___ Spring     _X__ Summer     Year: __2024____

8. Catalog course description: ______________________________________________________

SPE 5003 – Families and Collaboration in Special Education (3-0-3)._____ __________________

This course develops teacher candidate competencies to collaborate with individuals with

exceptionalities, their families, educators, related service providers, and community agency

personnel in culturally responsive ways to address the needs of individuals with exceptionalities

across a range of learning experiences. Focus will be placed on promoting families and students’

involvement in assessing, designing, developing, implementing, and evaluating culturally responsive

education programs while ensuring ethical procedural safeguards. __________________________

9. Course attributes:

General education component: ______N/A___________________________________________

___ Cultural diversity ___ Honors  ___ Writing centered     ___ Writing intensive  ___Writing active

___ Department Capstone as Senior Seminar

10. Instructional delivery

Type of Course:

_X__ Lecture     ___ Lab     ___ Lecture/lab combined     ___ Independent study/research

___ Internship     ___ Performance     ___ Practicum/clinical  ___ Other, specify: ________________

Mode(s) of Delivery:

___ Face to Face      __ Online Synchronous  __X_ Online Asynchronous                ___ Study Abroad

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-10



 

 

___ Hybrid, specify approximate amount of on-line and face-to-face instruction_________________ 

11. Course(s) to be deleted from the catalog once this course is approved: ____N/A_____________ 

12. Equivalent course(s): ____None_____________________________________________ 

a. Are students allowed to take equivalent course(s) for credit?   ___ Yes     __X_ No 

13. Prerequisite(s): Admission to Special Education MAT program or permission of the Department 
Chair __________ 

a. Can prerequisite be taken concurrently? ___ Yes     ___ No  N/A_ no course pre-req 

b.  Minimum grade required for the prerequisite course(s)?  __N/A_ no course pre-req 

c. Use Banner coding to enforce prerequisite course(s)?   _X_ Yes     ___ No.   

d. Who may waive prerequisite(s)?  

___ No one     _X__ Chair     ___ Instructor     ___ Advisor     ___ Other (specify) 

14. Co-requisite(s): ______N/A________________________________________________ 

15. Enrollment restrictions 

a. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may take the course: MAT in Special Education 
or MS in Special Education 

b. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may not take the course: No one but those 
listed in 15a 

16. Repeat status: __X_ May not be repeated     ___ May be repeated once with credit 

17. Enter the limit, if any, on hours which may be applied to a major or minor: _3__ 

18. Grading methods:   __X_ Standard     ___ CR/NC     __ Audit     ___ ABC/NC 

19. Special grading provisions: 

N/A___ Grade for course will not count in a student’s grade point average. 

N/A ___ Grade for course will not count in hours toward graduation. 

N/A Grade for course will be removed from GPA if student already has credit for or is registered in:_ 

N/A ___ Credit hours for course will be removed from student’s hours toward graduation if student 
already has credit for or is registered in: ____________________________________ 

20. Additional costs to students:  
Supplemental Materials or Software:____None_________________________ 

Course Fee __X_No ___Yes, Explain if yes________________________________ 



 

 

21. Community college transfer: 

___ A community college course may be judged equivalent. 

_X__ A community college may not be judged equivalent. 

Note: Upper division credit (3000+) will not be granted for a community college course, even if the 
content is judged to be equivalent. 

 

Rationale, Justifications, and Assurances (Part I)  

1. _X_Course is required for the major(s) of _Special Education Masters in the Art of Teaching (MAT) 

___Course is required for the minor(s) of ____________________ 

_X__Course is required for the certificate program(s) of ___LBS I Endorsement___ 

_X__ Course is used as an elective __MS in Special Education 

2. Rationale for proposal: 

This course provides special education theory and practice needed to meet the professional 

standards required for teacher candidates in Illinois seeking an initial Professional Educators License 

with an endorsement in Learning Behavior Specialist I, advanced endorsement, or master’s in special 

education. Candidates majoring in Special Education must demonstrate knowledge and skills 

acquired in this course to successfully educate students with exceptional learning needs as licensed 

professionals in the field.  

 

3. Justifications for (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Similarity to other courses: N/A 

Prerequisites: Candidates must meet minimum requirements for admissions to the College of 

Education Master of Arts in Teaching in agreement with and as outlined by the Illinois State Board of 

Education for those seeking certification through entitlement to teach in Illinois. Or candidates must 

be enrolled in the MS in SPE Program to take this course. 

Co-requisites: N/A 

Enrollment restrictions: Candidates must meet minimum requirements for admissions to the College 

of Education Master of Arts in Teaching in agreement with and as outlined by the Illinois State Board 

of Education for those seeking certification through entitlement to teach in Illinois. Or candidates 

must be enrolled in the MS in SPE Program to take this course. 

4. General education assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

General education component: N/A 

Curriculum:  N/A 



 

 

Instruction:  N/A 

Assessment: N/A 

5. Online/Hybrid delivery justification & assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Online or hybrid delivery justification:  

This course is being developed to address the teacher shortage in special education in Illinois 

and across the United States. The course is intended to serve a population of candidates that 

cannot attend classes on campus and asynchronous delivery makes the course accessible to 

candidates who work both in schools and those who are career changers.  Since it is also 

being used as an elective in the MS in SPE program, which is a fully online program, the 

course must be delivered in an online format to meet the needs of those advanced candidates 

as well.  
 
Instruction:  

Candidates will be able to access audio and/or video recordings and other instructional 

materials through EIU’s online learning management system. Assignments, discussion 

postings, and quizzes/exams will be completed or submitted within the learning management 

system. Feedback from the instructor will be provided through email, online discussion 

boards, and synchronous video conference. Faculty members who teach this course will have 

completed OCDI training or equivalent. 

Integrity:  

Syllabus content includes statements regarding academic dishonesty and plagiarism as well as 

adherence to dispositional professional ethical standards required of all College of Education 

majors. To deter dishonesty, the EIU learning management system includes software for 

detection of dishonesty during exams and plagiarism when documents are submitted.  
 
Interaction:  

The instructor and students will be able to communicate with one another through email, 

discussion boards, and collaborative functions provided by the learning management system. 

The instructor will post weekly videos and encourage candidates to meet for office hours. 

Candidates will be encouraged to collaborate with one another through the learning 

management system. 

 
Model Syllabus (Part II)  

Please include the following information:  

1. Course (Prefix, Number, Title): 

SPE 5003– Families and Collaboration in Special Education 

 

2. Course Description: 



 

 

This course develops teacher candidate competencies to collaborate with individuals with 

exceptionalities, their families, educators, related service providers, and community agency personnel in 

culturally responsive ways to address the needs of individuals with exceptionalities across a range of 

learning experiences. Focus will be placed on promoting families and students’ involvement in assessing, 

designing, developing, implementing, and evaluating culturally responsive education programs while 

ensuring ethical procedural safeguards. 

3. Learning Objectives 

1. Candidates will demonstrate knowledge and implications of collaborative family-professional 

partnerships and team problem solving and decision making to address the needs of diverse learners 

(e.g., students with disabilities, students at-risk, and English Language Learners).  GLG 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 

2. Candidates will demonstrate skills to conduct interview/assessments, analyze interactions and 

responses, then engage in collaborative problem-solving decision-making activities to address a family’s 

area of concern or student need.  GLG 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 

3. Candidates will demonstrate collaborative interactions with families and teams to develop goals and 

objectives and/or identify accommodations/modifications, and/or related services, and advocate to 

effectively support students with exceptional learning needs, their families, and school stakeholders that 

fosters quality instruction and student achievement in order to promote positive, safe, and effective 

school environments for all learners.  GLG 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 

 

EIU Graduate Learning Goals (GLG) 
1. A depth of content knowledge. The depth of content knowledge can include program learning 
objectives related specifically to the knowledge base as defined by the discipline; specific skill sets in the 
areas of technology, leadership, management, or laboratory procedures; application of theory into 
practice; and/or competency as a performer, educator, artist, or conductor 
2. Critical thinking and problem-solving skills. Critical thinking and problem solving can be assessed 
through various class assignments including laboratory procedures and reports; application of case 
studies and other simulated situations; and evaluations of health/medical status as well as by 
performance on the program's comprehensive knowledge component.  
3. Effective oral and written communication skills. Oral and written communication skills typically are 
assessed throughout the students' degree program. Regular course assignments, including position 
papers, lab reports, research reviews, technical presentations, debates, and facilitated discussions as 
well as performance as a graduate assistant, if appropriate, can be utilized. 
4. Evidence of advanced scholarship through research and/or creative activity. Advanced scholarship 
through research and creative activity is a critical component of all graduate degree programs. Evidence 
of scholarly activity might include formulating, conducting, and presenting original research, critically 
reviewing and synthesizing existing research, designing artwork or other creative works and composing 
a musical piece. 
5. Ethical and professional responsibility is an important component of graduate-level training and may 
include awareness of specific codes of ethics in a discipline, integrity in scholarship and research 
practices, professional disposition, respect and value for diversity and inclusion, and a commitment to 
respectful and responsible discourses within and beyond a discipline. 
 



 

 

Additional Standards Addressed in this Course: 

Illinois Teacher Prep initial All SPE Standards 
Illinois Teacher Prep LBSI Standards 
CEC Initial Standards 
CEC Advanced Standards 
Illinois Professional Educator Standards 
Illinois Social Emotional Learning Standards 
Illinois Culturally Responsive Teaching and Learning Standards 
InTASC Core 
 

4. Course Materials 

Turnbull A., Turnbull, R., Francis, G. L., Burke, M.M., Kyzar, K., Haines, S., Gershwin, T., Shepard, K., 

Holdren, N., & Singer, G. H. S. (2022). Families and professionals: Trusting partnerships 

in General and Special Education (8th ed.). Pearson. 

Gorn, L., & Bateman, D. F. (2024). Related services in special education: Working together as a team. 

Rowan and Littlefield.  

Illinois State Board of Education Special Education Department. (2020). “The Parent Guide” Educational 

rights and responsibilities: Understanding special education in Illinois. Illinois State Board Of 

Education.  

*Additional readings, videos, and other learning materials will be available via the LMS. 

5. Weekly Outline of Content 

1. Impact of Law and Policy on Education of Individuals with Exceptional Learning Needs and Their 

Families including but not limited to: 

A. The 14th Amendment of the U. S. Constitution: A Source of Fairness, Equality of 

Opportunity, and Dignity 

B. Civil Rights: Seeking Fairness, Equality of Opportunity, and Dignity 

C. Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) 

D. Federal Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 

E. Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA): Students with Disabilities 

F. Section 504 

 

2. Collaborative Trusting Family–Professional Partnerships in General and Special Education  

A. Dimensions of Trusting Partnerships. 

B. Challenges in Developing Trusting Partnerships 

C. Strategies for Developing and Engaging in Collaborative Trusting Partnerships 

D. Benefits of Collaborative Trusting Partnerships 

 

3. Professional Ethics, Dispositions, and Conduct in Collaborative Partnerships 

A. Procedural Safeguards 



 

 

B. Confidentiality and Informed Consent 

C. Principle of No Harm 

D. Bias in Identification, Assessment, Placement, Curriculum Development, Instructional 

Delivery, and Social Access 

 

4. Family Systems and Family Characteristics 

A. Family Systems Theory and Subsystems 

B. Family Characteristics: Culture and Identity 

C. Family Characteristics: Lived Experiences 

D. Implications for Socialization, Education, and Family-Professional Partnerships 

 

5. School Systems and School Characteristics 

A. School Systems, Subsystems, and Framework 

B. School Characteristics and Culture 

C. School Functions 

D. Related Services 

E. Implications for General and Individualized Assessment, Curriculum, and Instruction for 

Diverse Learners 

 

6. Structure, Policy, and Practices that Influence Systemic Educational Disparities That Impact on Family-

Professional Partnerships 

A. Influence of Systemic Educational Institution Barriers, Social Ideologies, and Social 

Constructs on Collaborative Family-Professional Partnerships 

B. Power Matrix and Disproportionate Representation of Diverse Groups in Special 

Education 

C. Policy issues in Special Education Funding and Distribution of Education Resources 

Required to Meet the Needs of Diverse Learners 

D. Strategies for Professional Self-Actualization. Pedagogical Change, and Empowerment of 

Students with Exceptional Learning Needs and their Families to Alter Systems of 

Oppression and Discrimination 

 

7. Equity, Respect, and Culturally Responsive Collaborative Problem-Solving Decision-Making to Meet 

the Needs of Diverse Families and their Students 

A. Definitions and Culturally Responsive Standards 

B. Need for and Effects of Equity, Respect, and Culturally Responsive Practices on Problem-

Solving Decision-Making 

C. Systemic Barriers to Equity, Respect, and Culturally Responsive Problem-Solving 

Decision-Making 

D. Strategies for Commitment, Development, and Implementation of equitable, respectful, 

culturally responsive practices in Teaming, and Teaching 

 

8. Family Needs Assessments and Strength-Based Educational Planning for Students with Exceptional 

Learning Needs 



 

 

A. Respectful Ethical Interview Techniques, Data Collection, and Data Management 

B. Positive Reporting of Family and Student Demographic Information 

C. Collaborative Identification of Family and Student Strengths and Interests 

D. Collaborative Identification of Family and Students Concerns 

E. Collaborative Identification of Family and Student Needs 

F. Imbedding Educational Needs in Preferred Activities and  

 

9. Special Education Teams and Family Membership 

A. Legal Requirements for Teams in Special Education 

B. Definition of Teams 

C. Type of Teams 

D. Stages of Team Development 

E. Defining Team Members Roles and Responsibilities 

F. Characteristics of Effective Teams 

G. Teaming in the Digital Age 

 

10. Collaborative Teaming 

A. Collaboration Definitions and Principles 

B. Establishing Team Goals 

C. Logistics of Teaming in Schools: Scheduling, Agenda Development, and Record Keeping 

D. Team Communication  

E. Team Culture and Morale 

F. Team Self-Study 

 

11. Collaborative Team Problem-Solving and Decision Making in Assessing Student Needs and Planning 

Educational Programs for Students with Exceptional Learning Needs 

A. Establishing Teams 

B. Team Identification of Student Needs 

C. Team Generation of Interventions to Meet Student Needs 

D. Team Selection and Implementation of Evidence-Based Interventions 

E. Team Evaluations of Fidelity to Interventions and Intervention Effects 

F. Team Accountability 

 

12. Co-Teaching Theory and Practice 

A. Definitions of Co-Teaching 

B. Co-Teaching Models 

C. Benefits of Co-Teaching 

D. Challenges in Co-Teaching 

E. Professional Development  

 

13. Paraprofessional Team Members 

A. Assignment of Paraprofessionals to Teams 

B. Matching Paraprofessionals to Roles and Responsibilities  



 

 

C. Delegating Appropriate Tasks to Paraprofessionals 

D. Scheduling for Paraprofessionals and Ancillary Staff 

E. Effective Communication and Collegial Interactions 

F. Professionalism, Modeling Expectations, and Providing Professional Development 

G. Paraprofessionals Interactions with Families 

H. Feedback Loops, Paraprofessional Empowerment, and Recognition 

 

14. Related Services Adaptations Needed to Address Family Concerns and Meet Student Needs 

A. Definition and Purpose of Related Services 

B. Types an Examples of Related Services 

C. Special Considerations for the IEP: Transportation, Health Care, Extra-Curricular 

Activities, Other 

D. Roles and Responsibilities of Related Service Providers 

E. Types of Adaptations and Distinction Between Accommodations and Modifications 

F. Team Decision Making in Identification and Implementation of Adaptations 

G. Professional Development, Implementation, and Evaluating the Effectiveness of 

Adaptations 

 

15. Advocacy for Families and Students with Exceptional Learning Needs 

A. Definition and Historical Precedent of and Rationale for Advocacy 

B. Effects of Advocacy 

C. Barriers to Advocacy  

D. Strategies and Organizations That Promote Advocacy 

E. Strategies to Improve Self-Advocacy of Families and Individuals with Exceptional 

Learning Needs 

 

16. Final Exam 

 

6. Assignments and Evaluation, including weights for final course grade  

Exams and Quizzes: Quizzes may be given to assess candidates’ comprehension of the course 

content. A mid-term and final exam will be given on the textbooks and other course readings. 

(30% of grade) 

Related Course Learning Objectives:1,2,3 

Course Module Activities: In each module, activities will be assigned as a means of assessing 

candidates’ application of course content. Activities may include the development of a digital 

resource guide for families and educators; case study reviews and development of instructional 

and related supports and services schedules; and case study reviews to determine need for and 

development of adaptations (accommodations and modifications). These will also build toward 

the Final Class Project. All module activities must be completed. These may include Discussion 

Board posts. (30%) 



Related Course Learning Objectives:1,2,3 

Course Project I – Collaborative Student Schedule Matrix:  Candidates will be given a case study 

that includes a general education teacher’s classroom instructional schedule, ancillary staff 

schedules, special education teacher’s schedule, and a class list of students with their 

Individualized Education Program (IEP) special education instructional and related services time 

requirements. Candidates will be required to create a master schedule that ensures all time 

requirements are met while ensuring students are maximizing instructional and social time with 

peers. (10% of grade)   

Related Course Learning Objectives:1,2,3 

Course Project II – Collaborative Decision-Making Project:  During the semester, candidates will 

prepare for and complete a family Interview/assessment exchange to collaboratively identify 

and address a family’s concerns/need for their student with exceptional learning needs.  The 

project will require candidates to share information about themselves and answer questions 

families may have for them. The candidate will conduct the interview/assessment and then 

analyze responses. Candidates will then engage in a collaborative problem-solving decision-

making activity to address an area of concern or student need. Candidates will further 

collaborate with families to develop list of instructional needs and/or identify 

accommodations/modifications, and/or related services. This is the major project for this 

course; a corresponding department rubric will serve as the evaluation tool. (30% of grade) 

Related Course Learning Objectives:1,2,3 

*alternative/additional assignments may be added based upon candidate need

7. Grading Scale

A point scale is used.  Grades are determined by the number of points earned.  The following scale is used 

by the Department of Special Education faculty: 

90% or more of total points A 

80-89% of total points  B 

70-79% of total points  C 

60-69% of total points  D 

Less than 60% of total points F 

Date approved by the department or school:  9/20/2023; revisions approved 9/28/23 Date 
approved by the college curriculum committee:  10/02/2023     council of teacher ed: 10/12/2023
Date approved by the Honors Council (if this is an honors course):   
Date approved by CAA:    CGS:   



Eastern Illinois University 
New/Revised Course Proposal Format 

(Approved by CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21) 

Banner/Catalog Information (Coversheet) 

1. __X__New Course or _____Revision of Existing Course

2. Course prefix and number:  __SPE 5007

3. Short title: Transition Planning for ILN

4. Long title: Characteristics, Assessment and Transition Planning for Students with Intensive Learning

Needs

5. Hours per week: _3__ Class      __0_ Lab      __3_ Credit

6. Terms: ___ Fall     ___ Spring     ___ Summer     _X__ On demand

7. Initial term:  _ Fall     __X_ Spring     ___ Summer     Year: __2025____

8. Catalog course description:

SPE 5007 Characteristics, Assessment and Transition Planning for Students with Intensive Learning

Needs (3-0-3)_____________ 

This course serves to enhance teacher competencies in assessing and teaching students identified as 

having intensive learning needs, including students with low incidence disabilities and medical 

fragility. Focus will be placed on developing an understanding of the unique needs of these 

individuals across the lifespan, including assessment for programming purposes, transition planning 

and community supports.  

9. Course attributes:

General education component: ______N/A___________________________________________

___ Cultural diversity ___ Honors  ___ Writing centered     ___ Writing intensive  ___Writing active

___ Department Capstone as Senior Seminar

10. Instructional delivery

Type of Course:

_X__ Lecture     ___ Lab     ___ Lecture/lab combined     ___ Independent study/research

___ Internship     ___ Performance     ___ Practicum/clinical  ___ Other, specify: ________________

Mode(s) of Delivery:

___ Face to Face      __ Online Synchronous  __X_ Online Asynchronous                ___ Study Abroad

___ Hybrid, specify approximate amount of on-line and face-to-face instruction_________________

11. Course(s) to be deleted from the catalog once this course is approved: ____N/A_____________

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-14



12. Equivalent course(s): ____None_____________________________________________ 

a. Are students allowed to take equivalent course(s) for credit?   ___ Yes     __X_ No 

13. Prerequisite(s): Admission to Special Education MAT program, MS in Special Education or 
permission of the Department Chair 

a. Can prerequisite be taken concurrently? ___ Yes     ___ No  N/A_ no course pre-req 

b.  Minimum grade required for the prerequisite course(s)?  __N/A_ no course pre-req 

c. Use Banner coding to enforce prerequisite course(s)?   _X_ Yes     ___ No.   

d. Who may waive prerequisite(s)?  

___ No one     _X__ Chair     ___ Instructor     ___ Advisor     ___ Other (specify) 

14. Co-requisite(s): ______N/A________________________________________________ 

15. Enrollment restrictions 

a. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may take the course: MAT in Special Education, 
or MS in Special Education 

b. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may not take the course: _No one but those 
listed in 15a. 

16. Repeat status: __X_ May not be repeated     ___ May be repeated once with credit 

17. Enter the limit, if any, on hours which may be applied to a major or minor: _3__ 

18. Grading methods:   __X_ Standard     ___ CR/NC     __ Audit     ___ ABC/NC 

19. Special grading provisions: 

N/A_ Grade for course will not count in a student’s grade point average. 

N/A _Grade for course will not count in hours toward graduation. 

N/A   Grade for course will be removed from GPA if student already has credit for or is registered 
in:_ 

N/A  Credit hours for course will be removed from student’s hours toward graduation if student 
already has credit for or is registered in: ____________________________________ 

20. Additional costs to students:  
Supplemental Materials or Software:____None_________________________ 

Course Fee __X_No ___Yes, Explain if yes________________________________ 

21. Community college transfer: 

___ A community college course may be judged equivalent. 

_X__ A community college may not be judged equivalent. 



Note: Upper division credit (3000+) will not be granted for a community college course, even if the 
content is judged to be equivalent. 

 

Rationale, Justifications, and Assurances (Part I)  

1. _X_Course is required for the major(s) of _Special Education Masters in the Art of Teaching (MAT) 

___Course is required for the minor(s) of ____________________ 

__Course is required for the certificate program(s) of _ _____________ 

 X   Course is used as an elective for the MS in Special Education  

2. Rationale for proposal : 

This course provides special education theory and practice needed to meet the professional 

standards required for teacher candidates in Illinois seeking Learning Behavior Specialist I licensure. 

Candidates majoring in Special Education must demonstrate knowledge and skills acquired in this 

course to successfully educate students with exceptional learning needs as licensed professionals in 

the field.   

 

3. Justifications for (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Similarity to other courses: N/A 

Prerequisites Candidates must meet minimum requirements for admissions to the College of 

Education Master of Arts in Teaching in agreement with and as outlined by the Illinois State Board of 

Education for those seeking certification through entitlement to teach in Illinois. Or candidates must 

be enrolled in the MS in SPE Program to take this course.  

 

Co-requisites: N/A 

Enrollment restrictions: Candidates must meet minimum requirements for admissions to the College 

of Education Master of Arts in Teaching in agreement with and as outlined by the Illinois State Board 

of Education for those seeking certification through entitlement to teach in Illinois. Or candidates 

must be enrolled in the MS in SPE Program to take this course. 

Writing active, intensive, centered: N/A  

4. General education assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

General education component: N/A 

Curriculum:  N/A 

Instruction:  N/A 

Assessment: N/A 

5. Online/Hybrid delivery justification & assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Online or hybrid delivery justification:  



This course is being developed to address the teacher shortage in special education in Illinois 

and across the United States. The course is intended to serve a population of candidates that 

cannot attend classes on campus and asynchronous delivery makes the course accessible to 

candidates who work both in schools and those who are career changers.  Since it is also 

being used as an elective in the MS in SPE program, which is a fully online program, the 

course must be delivered in an online format to meet the needs of those advanced candidates 

as well.  
 
Instruction:  

Candidates will be able to access audio and/or video recordings and other instructional 

materials through EIU’s online learning management system. Assignments, discussion 

postings, and quizzes/exams will be completed or submitted within the learning management 

system. Feedback from the instructor will be provided through the LMS, email, online 

discussion boards, and synchronous video conference. Faculty members who teach this 

course will have completed OCDI training or equivalent. 

Integrity:  

Syllabus content includes statements regarding academic dishonesty and plagiarism as well as 

adherence to dispositional professional ethical standards required of all College of Education 

majors. To deter dishonesty, the EIU learning management system includes software for 

detection of dishonesty during exams and plagiarism when documents are submitted.  
 

Interaction:  

The instructor and students will be able to communicate with one another through email, 

discussion boards, and collaborative functions provided by the learning management system. 

The instructor will post weekly videos and encourage candidates to meet for office hours. 

Candidates will be encouraged to collaborate with one another through the learning 

management system. 

 
Model Syllabus (Part II)  

Please include the following information:  

1. Course  

SPE 5007 Characteristics, Assessment and Transition Planning for Students with Intensive Learning 

Needs (3-0-3) 

2. Course Description: 

This course serves to enhance teacher competencies in assessing and teaching students identified as 

having intensive learning needs, including students with low incidence disabilities and medical fragility. 

Focus will be placed on developing an understanding of the unique needs of these individuals across the 

lifespan, including assessment for programming purposes, transition planning and community supports.  

Learning Objectives for the Course 

Candidates Will: 



1. Demonstrate an understanding of the historical significance and legal requirements for 
individuals with intensive learning needs. GLG 1, 3, 5 

2. Demonstrate an understanding of the characteristics and specific needs of individuals with 
intensive learning needs across the life span. GLG 1, 3, 5 

3. Identify the basic underlying foundations of assessment, curriculum, and instruction for 
students with intensive learning needs across the life span. GLG 1, 2, 5 

4. Demonstrate an understanding of unique programming needs for individuals with intensive 
learning needs. GLG 1, 2, 4 

5. Analyze and describe how to choose, evaluate, create, and administer assessments for a variety 
of purposes in schools and for transition planning practices (e.g. formative assessment, 
screening, diagnostic, progress monitoring, and outcome evaluation). GLG 1,2,3,5 

6. Demonstrate understanding of Evidence-Based Practices and curricular decision-making for 
individuals with intensive learning needs GLG 1,4 

7. Utilize data to make decisions regarding program planning and transition planning for 
individuals with intensive learning needs.  GLG 1, 2, 4, 5 

8. Develop skills in working with a variety of stakeholders (parents, related service providers, 
general educators, outside providers, community agencies, etc.) to make recommendations for 
transition planning and planning for post K12 for students with intensive learning needs GLG 3, 
4, 5 

9. Develop skills to advocate for and to teach self-determination skills to students with intensive 
learning needs.  GLG 1, 4, 5 

 
EIU Graduate Learning Goals (GLG) 
1. A depth of content knowledge. The depth of content knowledge can include program  
learning objectives related specifically to the knowledge base as defined by the discipline;  
specific skill sets in the areas of technology, leadership, management, or laboratory  
procedures; application of theory into practice; and/or competency as a performer,  
educator, artist, or conductor 
2. Critical thinking and problem solving skills. Critical thinking and problem solving can be  
assessed through various class assignments including laboratory procedures and reports;  
application of case studies and other simulated situations; and evaluations of  
health/medical status as well as by performance on the program's comprehensive  
knowledge component.  
3. Effective oral and written communication skills. Oral and written communication skills 
typically are assessed throughout the students' degree program. Regular course  
assignments, including position papers, lab reports, research reviews, technical  
presentations, debates, and facilitated discussions as well as performance as a graduate  
assistant, if appropriate, can be utilized. 
4. Evidence of advanced scholarship through research and/or creative activity. Advanced  
scholarship through research and creative activity is a critical component of all graduate  
degree programs. Evidence of scholarly activity might include formulating, conducting, and  
presenting original research, critically reviewing and synthesizing existing research,  
designing artwork or other creative works and composing a musical piece. 
5. Ethical and professional responsibility is an important component of graduate-level  
training and may include awareness of specific codes of ethics in a discipline, integrity in  
scholarship and research practices, professional disposition, respect and value for diversity  
and inclusion, and a commitment to respectful and responsible discourses within and  
beyond a discipline. 
 
Additional Standards Addressed in this Course: 
Illinois Professional Educator Standards (IPES) 
IPES a.LE6, b.IN1, b.IN3, b.IN4, b.IN6, b.IN7, b.IN10, b.IN11, b.IN16, b.IN17, C.A1, C.A2, C. A3, C. A4, C.A5, 

C.A6, C.A11, C.A12, C.A13, d. CC2, d.CC3, d.CC4, d.CC5, d.CC7 



 
Illinois Initial Teacher Preparation Program Standards for All Special Educators 
a.1K.A, a.1K.B, a.1K.C, a.1K.D, a.1K.F, a.2P.C, b.1K.A, b.1K.B, b.1K.C, b.1K.D, b.1K.E, b.1K.F, b.1K.G, 

b.1K.H, b.1K.I, b.1K.J, b.1K.K, b.1K.N, b.1K.O, b.2P.A, b.2P.B, b.2P.C, c.IK.A, c.IK.B, c.IK.C, c.IK.D, c.IK.I, 

c.2P.A, c.2P.B, c.2P.C, c.2P.D, c.2P.F, c.2P.G, c.2P.H, d.IK.E, d.1K.F, d.IK.H, d.IK.J, d.1K.K, d.1K.O, d.1K.P, 

d.2P.A, d.2P.B, d.2P.C, d.2P.E, d.2P.J, d.2P.K, d.2P.L, d.2P.M, e.1K.E, e.1K.F, e.1K.J, e.1K.N, e.1K.P, e.2P. 

D, e.2P.F, e.2P.L, f.1K.A, f.2P.C, f.2P.E, f.2P.F, f.2P.G, f.2P.I, g.1K.A, g.1K.B, g.2P.A, g.2P. D, g.2P.F, g.2P.G, 

h.1K.B, h.1K.E, h.2P.A, h.2P.G, h.2P.H 

Council for Exceptional Children (CEC) Initial Preparation Standards 
CEC 1.0, 1.1, 1.2, 2.0, 2.2, 3.0, 3.2, 3.3, 4.0, 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 5.0, 5.1, 5.3, 5.5, 6.0, 6.1, 6.2, 6.5, 7.0, 7.3 

Council for Exceptional Children (CEC) Advanced Preparation Standards 
CEC 1.0, 1.1, 1.2, 2.0, 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 3.0, 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 4.0, 4.1, 5.0, 5.1, 5.2, 6.0, 6.1, 6.2, 6.3, 7.0, 7.1, 
7.2 
 
INTASC Model Core Teaching Standards 
1.1a, 1.1b, 1.1e, 1.1f, 1.1g, 1.1h, 1.1i, 1.1j, 1.1k, 2.2a, 2.2b, 2.2c, 2.2d, 2.2e, 2.2f, 2.2g, 2.2h, 2.2j, 2.2k, 
2.2i, 2.2m, 2.2n, 3.3a, 3.3b, 3.3c, 3.3d, 3.3e, 3.3f, 3.3h, 3.3i, 3.3j, 3.3k, 3.3l, 3.3n, 3.3p, 3.3q, 3.3r, 4.4c, 
4.4d, 4.4e, 4.4f, 4.4g, 4.4h, 4.4i, 4.4k, 4.4l, 4.4m, 4.4n, 4.4o, 4.4p, 4.4q, 4.4r, 5.5b, 5.5e, 5.5f, 5.5h, 5.5k, 
5.5n, 5.5r, 5.5s, 6.6a, 6.6b, 6.6c, 6.6d, 6.6e, 6.6g, 6.6h, 6.6i, 6.6j, 6.6k, 6.6l, 6.6n, 6.6o, 6.6p, 6.6r, 6.6s, 
6.6t, 6.6u, 6.6v, 7.7a, 7.7b, 7.7c, 7.7d, 7.7e, 7.7f, 7.7g, 7.7i, 7.7j, 7.7k, 7.7l, 7.7m, 7.7n, 7.7o, 7.7p, 7.7q, 
8.8a, 8.8b, 8.8c, 8.8d, 8.8e, 8.8g, 8.8h, 8.8i, 8.8j, 8.8k, 8.8l, 8.8m, 8.8n, 8.8o, 8.8p, 8.8q, 8.8r, 8.8s, 9.9a, 
9.9c, 9.9e, 9.9h, 9.9i, 9.9j, 9.9m, 9.9o, 10.10b, 10.10d, 10.10e, 10.10j, 10.10n, 10.10q 
 
Illinois Social Emotional Learning Standards (SEL) 
1A, 1B, 1C, 2A, 2C, 3A, 3B, 3C 

Illinois Culturally Responsive Teaching and Leading Standards (CRTL) 
D1, D2, D3, D5, D6, E1, E2, E3, E4, E6, E7, E8, F1, F2, F3, F4, F5, F6, F7, F9, F11, G4, G12, H1, H3 
 
4. Course Materials 
Required Texts: 

Mazzotti, V. L. & Rowe, D. A. (2015).  Building Alliances:  A How-To Manual to Support Transitioning 

Youth.  Council for Exceptional Children.  

Schalock, R. L., Luckasson, R. & Tasse, M. J. (2021).  Intellectual Disability: Definition, Diagnosis, 
Classification, and Systems of Supports (12th ed.).  AAIDD. 

 

Wehman, P.  (2020). Essentials of Transition Planning (2nd ed.). Paul H. Brookes. 

*Additional readings, videos, and other learning materials will be available via the LMS. 

5. Weekly Outline of Content 

Weeks Topic(s) 

Weeks 1-2 Introduction to the Course 
Historical Foundations and Special Education Law for Individuals with Intensive Learning 
Needs 
 



Weeks 3-4 Intensive Learning Needs Across the Life Span including characteristics and programming 

Weeks 5-6 Functional, Community and Health Education Curriculum 
 

Weeks 7-8 Assessment Practices for Programming and Transition Planning 

Weeks 9-10 Community Partners and Agency Supports  

Weeks 11-12 Transition Planning and Practices 

Weeks 13-14 Advocacy and Self-Determination 

Weeks 15-16 Project/Final Exam 

 

6. Assignments and Evaluation, including weights for final course grade  

Readings: Candidates are expected to complete all readings for the course which are listed in 

the schedule and found in the issued textbooks or housed in the LMS.  

Related Course Learning Objectives:1,2,3,4,6 

Exams and Quizzes: Quizzes may be given to assess candidates’ comprehension of the course 

content. Two exams will be used to evaluate foundational knowledge and application of 

material. (25%) 

Related Course Learning Objectives:2,3,4,6 

Course Module Activities: In each module, activities will be assigned as a means of assessing 

candidates’ application of course content. These may include Discussion Board posts. (40%) 

Related Course Learning Objectives:1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8 

Course Projects:  During the semester, candidates will complete two projects:  one related to 

the assessment of the skills and needs of individuals with exceptional learning needs and one 

that requires candidates to use data to develop a transition plan for an individual student with 

exceptional learning needs. These are the major projects for this course; a corresponding 

department rubric will serve as the evaluation tool for each. (35%) 

Related Course Learning Objectives: 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8 

*alternative/additional assignments may be added based upon candidate need 

7. Grading Scale 

A point scale is used.  Grades are determined by the number of points earned.  The following scale is used 

by the Department of Special Education faculty: 

90% or more of total points A 

80-89% of total points  B 

70-79% of total points  C 

60-69% of total points  D 



Less than 60% of total points F 

Date approved by the department or school:  9/20/2023; revisions approved 9/28/23 Date approved 
by the college curriculum committee:  10/02/2023    council of teacher ed: 10/12/2023
Date approved by the Council on Teacher Education:   
Date approved by CAA:    CGS:   



Eastern Illinois University 
New/Revised Course Proposal Format 

(Approved by CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21) 

Banner/Catalog Information (Coversheet) 

1. __X__New Course or _____Revision of Existing Course

2. Course prefix and number:  SPE 5004

3. Short title: Assessment and Methods ELN

4. Long title: Assessment and Methods for Teaching Students with Exceptional Learning Needs

5. Hours per week: _3__ Class      __0_ Lab      __3_ Credit

6. Terms: ___ Fall     ___ Spring     ___ Summer     _X__ On demand

7. Initial term: __X_ Fall     __ _ Spring     ___ Summer     Year: __2024___

8. Catalog course description:

SPE 5004 Assessment and Methods for Teaching Students with Exceptional Learning Needs (3-0-3).

This course serves to enhance teacher competencies in developing general and specialized

instructional strategies used with individuals with exceptional learning needs. Focus will be placed

on using assessment to effectively design, implement, and evaluate long and short-range

instruction/instructional plans tailored to the needs of the learner across a range of severity levels

and instructional environments.

9. Course attributes:

General education component: ______N/A___________________________________________

___ Cultural diversity ___ Honors  ___ Writing centered     ___ Writing intensive  ___Writing active

___ Department Capstone as Senior Seminar

10. Instructional delivery

Type of Course:

_X__ Lecture     ___ Lab     ___ Lecture/lab combined     ___ Independent study/research

___ Internship     ___ Performance     ___ Practicum/clinical  ___ Other, specify: ________________

Mode(s) of Delivery:

___ Face to Face      __ Online Synchronous  __X_ Online Asynchronous                ___ Study Abroad

___ Hybrid, specify approximate amount of on-line and face-to-face instruction_________________

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-11



 

 

11. Course(s) to be deleted from the catalog once this course is approved: ____N/A_____________ 

12. Equivalent course(s): ____None_____________________________________________ 

a. Are students allowed to take equivalent course(s) for credit?   ___ Yes     __X_ No 

13. Prerequisite(s): Admission to Special Education MAT program, MS in Special Education, or 
permission of the Department Chair 

a. Can prerequisite be taken concurrently? ___ Yes     _X__ No   

b.  Minimum grade required for the prerequisite course(s)?  __N/A_  

c. Use Banner coding to enforce prerequisite course(s)?   _ X  _ Yes     ___ No  

d. Who may waive prerequisite(s)?  

___ No one     _X__ Chair     ___ Instructor     ___ Advisor     ___ Other (specify) 

14. Co-requisite(s): ______N/A________________________________________________ 

15. Enrollment restrictions 

a. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may take the course: _ MAT in Special Education 
or  MS in Special Education 

b. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may not take the course: _No one but those 
listed in 15a. 

16. Repeat status: __X_ May not be repeated     ___ May be repeated once with credit 

17. Enter the limit, if any, on hours which may be applied to a major or minor: _3__ 

18. Grading methods:   __X_ Standard     ___ CR/NC     __ Audit     ___ ABC/NC 

19. Special grading provisions: 

N/A___ Grade for course will not count in a student’s grade point average. 

N/A ___ Grade for course will not count in hours toward graduation. 

N/A Grade for course will be removed from GPA if student already has credit for or is registered in:_ 

N/A ___ Credit hours for course will be removed from student’s hours toward graduation if student 
already has credit for or is registered in: ____________________________________ 

20. Additional costs to students:  
Supplemental Materials or Software:____None_________________________ 

Course Fee __X_No ___Yes, Explain if yes________________________________ 

21. Community college transfer: 



 

 

___ A community college course may be judged equivalent. 

_X__ A community college may not be judged equivalent. 

Note: Upper division credit (3000+) will not be granted for a community college course, even if the 
content is judged to be equivalent. 

 

Rationale, Justifications, and Assurances (Part I)  

1. _X_Course is required for the major(s) of Special Education Masters of Arts in Teaching (MAT) 

___Course is required for the minor(s) of ____________________ 

     Course is required for the certificate program(s) of  

___ Course is used as an elective  

2. Rationale for proposal:  

This course provides special education theory and practice needed to meet the professional 

standards required for teacher candidates in Illinois seeking Learning Behavior Specialist I licensure. 

Candidates majoring in Special Education must demonstrate knowledge and skills acquired in this 

course to successfully educate students with exceptional learning needs as licensed professionals in 

the field 

Justifications for (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Similarity to other courses: N/A 

Prerequisites: Candidates must meet minimum requirements for admissions to the College of 

Education Master of Arts in Teaching in agreement with and as outlined by the Illinois State Board of 

Education for those seeking certification through entitlement to teach in Illinois.  

Co-requisites: N/A 

Enrollment restrictions:  

Candidates must meet minimum requirements for admissions to the College of Education Master of 

Arts in Teaching in agreement with and as outlined by the Illinois State Board of Education for those 

seeking certification through entitlement to teach in Illinois.  

 

Writing active, intensive, centered: N/A  

3. General education assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

General education component: N/A 

Curriculum:  N/A 

Instruction:  N/A 



 

 

Assessment: N/A 

4. Online/Hybrid delivery justification & assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Online or hybrid delivery justification:  

This course is being developed to address the teacher shortage in special education in Illinois 

and across the United States. The course is intended to serve a population of candidates that 

cannot attend classes on campus and asynchronous delivery makes the course accessible to 

candidates who work both in schools and those who are career changers.   
 

Instruction:  

Candidates will be able to access audio and/or video recordings and other instructional 

materials through EIU’s online learning management system. Assignments, discussion 

postings, and quizzes/exams will be completed or submitted within the learning management 

system. Feedback from the instructor will be provided through the LMS, email, online 

discussion boards, and synchronous video conference. Faculty members who teach this 

course will have completed OCDI training or equivalent. 

Integrity:  

Syllabus content includes statements regarding academic dishonesty and plagiarism as well as 
adherence to dispositional professional ethical standards required of all College of Education 
majors. To deter dishonesty, the EIU learning management system includes software for detection 
of dishonesty during exams and plagiarism when documents are submitted.  
 
Interaction:  

The instructor and students will be able to communicate with one another through email, 

discussion boards, and collaborative functions provided by the learning management system. 

The instructor will post weekly videos and encourage candidates to meet for office hours. 

Candidates will be encouraged to collaborate with one another through the learning 

management system. 

 

Model Syllabus (Part II)  

Please include the following information:  

1. Course (Prefix, Number, Title): 

SPE 5004 Assessment and Methods for Teaching Students with Exceptional Learning Needs (3-0-3). 

 

 

2. Course Description: 



 

 

This course serves to enhance teacher competencies in developing general and specialized instructional 

strategies used with individuals with exceptional learning needs. Focus will be placed on using 

assessment to effectively design, implement, and evaluate long and short-range 

instruction/instructional plans tailored to the needs of the learner across a range of severity levels and 

instructional environments. 

3. Learning Objectives 

1. Candidates will demonstrate skills in creating appropriate strategies to gather assessment data 

with the intent of determining present levels, strengths, and needs. GLG 1,2,5 

2. Candidates will devise an Individualized Education Plan (IEP) based on various types of data/data 

sources.  GLG 1,2,3,5 

3. Candidates will select and develop strategies and activities (including HLPs and EBPs) to 

effectively support students with exceptional learning needs GLG 1,2,4,5 

4. Candidates will create effective short-term plans (employing explicit instruction) based on 

student needs, interests, and standards GLG 1,2 

5. Candidates will analyze and describe the effectiveness of educational decision making related to 

long- and short-term planning and implementation GLG 1,2,3,5 

6. Candidates will describe next steps for instruction based on various sources of data and 

research. GLG 1,2,3,4,5 

7. Candidates will critically analyze their own knowledge, skills, dispositions and instructional 

decision making GLG 1,2,3,4,5 

 
Additional Standards Addressed in this Course: 

Illinois Teacher Prep initial All SPE Standards 
Illinois Teacher Prep LBSI Standards 
CEC Initial Standards 
CEC Advanced Standards 
Illinois Professional Educator Standards 
Illinois Social Emotional Learning Standards 
Illinois Culturally Responsive Teaching and Learning Standards 
InTASC Core 

  

4. Course Materials 

Required Texts: 

Hott, B. (Ed). (2023). Quality instruction and intervention: Strategies for secondary educators. Rowman  

& Littlefield. 



 

 

Polloway, E., Patton, J., Serna, L., & Bailey, J. (2022).  Strategies for teaching learners with special needs  

(12th ed.). Pearson. 

Websites:  
The IEP Progress Center https://promotingprogress.org/ 
Suggest IEP Quality Project (free account)  
 
**Additional readings, videos, and other learning materials will be available via the LMS. 
 
 
 
5. Weekly Outline of Content 

 Topic(s) 

Weeks 1-2 Introduction to the Course 
Establishing Your Classroom 
Classroom Environment Considerations 

Weeks 3-4 The Instructional Cycle: Designing and Planning for Assessment and 

Instruction 

Weeks 5-6 Curriculum Based Assessment/Measurement 
*CBA Case Study Assignment 

Weeks 7-8 Long Range Planning: Individualized Education Plans (IEPs)  
 

Weeks 9-10 Long Range Planning:  Curricular Planning                                           
*IEP Case Study Assignment 

Weeks 11-12 Short Term Planning:  Lesson Design and Delivery                               
Explicit Instruction                                                                                        

Weeks 13-14 High Leverage Practices (HLPs) 
Evidence Based Practices and Effective Strategies across content areas (all 
academic subjects, functional/life skills, SELs) 
*Explicit Instruction Lesson Plan Assignment 

Weeks 15-16 Collaborating with/Utilizing/Managing Paraprofessionals and Other Support 
Personnel 
Reflective Process                                                                                       

 

 

6. Assignments and Evaluation, including weights for final course grade  

https://promotingprogress.org/


Readings: Candidates are expected to complete all readings for the course which are listed in the 

schedule and found in the issued textbooks or housed in the LMS.  

Related Course Learning Objectives: 1,2,3,4,5,6,7 

Course Module Activities: In each module, activities will be assigned as a means of assessing candidates’ 

application of course content. These may include Discussion Board posts and quizzes. (50%) 

Related Course Learning Objectives:1,2,3,4,5,6 

Course Projects:  During the semester, candidates will complete three projects: 

1. A Curriculum-Based Assessment Project based on a case study

2. An IEP for an individual student based on data provided in a case study

3. A lesson plan developed utilizing a model of explicit instruction.

These are the major projects for this course; a corresponding department rubric will serve as the 

evaluation tool for each.  (50%) 

Related Course Learning Objectives: 1,2,3,4,5,6,7 

*Note: alternate/additional assignments may be added based upon candidate need

7. Grading Scale

A point scale is used.  Grades are determined by the number of points earned.  The following scale is 

used by the Department of Special Education faculty: 

90% or more of total points A 
80-89% of total points B 
70-79% of total points C 
60-69% of total points D 
Less than 60% of total points F 

Date approved by the department or school:  9/20/2023; revisions approved 9/28/23 Date 
approved by the college curriculum committee:  10/02/2023     council of teacher ed: 10/12/2023
 Date approved by the Honors Council (if this is an honors course):   
Date approved by CAA:    CGS:   



Eastern Illinois University 
New/Revised Course Proposal Format 

(Approved by CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21) 

Banner/Catalog Information (Coversheet) 

1. __X__New Course or _____Revision of Existing Course

2. Course prefix and number: __SPE 5005

3. Short title: Strategies and Assessment ELN

4. Long title Instructional Strategies and Assessment Approaches for Literacy and Numeracy for

students with Exceptional Learning Needs

5. Hours per week: _3__ Class      __0_ Lab      __3_ Credit

6. Terms: ___ Fall     ___ Spring     ___ Summer     _X__ On demand

7. Initial term:  X  Fall     ___ Spring     ___ Summer     Year: __2024____

8. Catalog course description:

SPE 5005 Instructional Strategies and Assessment Approaches for Literacy and Numeracy for

students with Exceptional Learning Needs (3-0-3)

This course serves to enhance teacher competencies in assessing and teaching literacy and

numeracy skills for students at-risk and those with exceptional learning needs (including those who

are Els/EBs and students with intensive support needs). Focus will be placed on developing an

understanding of literacy and numeracy foundations, assessing learners’ skills in these areas,

designing and implementing programming, and evaluating the effectiveness of specific interventions

and programs.

9. Course attributes:

General education component: ______N/A___________________________________________

___ Cultural diversity ___ Honors  ___ Writing centered     ___ Writing intensive  ___Writing active

___ Department Capstone as Senior Seminar

10. Instructional delivery

Type of Course:

_X__ Lecture     ___ Lab     ___ Lecture/lab combined     ___ Independent study/research

___ Internship     ___ Performance     ___ Practicum/clinical  ___ Other, specify: ________________

Mode(s) of Delivery:

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-12



 

 

___ Face to Face      __ Online Synchronous  __X_ Online Asynchronous                ___ Study Abroad    

___ Hybrid, specify approximate amount of on-line and face-to-face instruction_________________ 

11. Course(s) to be deleted from the catalog once this course is approved: ____N/A_____________ 

12. Equivalent course(s): ____None_____________________________________________ 

a. Are students allowed to take equivalent course(s) for credit?   ___ Yes     __X_ No 

13. Prerequisite(s): Admission to Special Education MAT program or permission of the Department 
Chair 

a. Can prerequisite be taken concurrently? ___ Yes     __X_ No   

b.  Minimum grade required for the prerequisite course(s)?  __N/A_  

c. Use Banner coding to enforce prerequisite course(s)?   _ X _ Yes     ___ No      

d. Who may waive prerequisite(s)?  

___ No one     _X__ Chair     ___ Instructor     ___ Advisor     ___ Other (specify) 

14. Co-requisite(s): ______N/A________________________________________________ 

15. Enrollment restrictions 

a. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may take the course: MAT in Special Education 
or MS in Special Education 

b. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may not take the course: _No one but those 
listed in 15a. 

16. Repeat status: __X_ May not be repeated     ___ May be repeated once with credit 

17. Enter the limit, if any, on hours which may be applied to a major or minor: _3__ 

18. Grading methods:   __X_ Standard     ___ CR/NC     __ Audit     ___ ABC/NC 

19. Special grading provisions: 

N/A___ Grade for course will not count in a student’s grade point average. 

N/A ___ Grade for course will not count in hours toward graduation. 

N/A Grade for course will be removed from GPA if student already has credit for or is registered in:_ 

N/A ___ Credit hours for course will be removed from student’s hours toward graduation if student 
already has credit for or is registered in: ____________________________________ 

20. Additional costs to students:  
Supplemental Materials or Software:____None_________________________ 



 

 

Course Fee __X_No ___Yes, Explain if yes________________________________ 

21. Community college transfer: 

___ A community college course may be judged equivalent. 

_X__ A community college may not be judged equivalent. 

Note: Upper division credit (3000+) will not be granted for a community college course, even if the 
content is judged to be equivalent. 

 

Rationale, Justifications, and Assurances (Part I)  

1. _X_Course is required for the major(s) of _Special Education Master of Arts in Teaching (MAT) 

___Course is required for the minor(s) of ____________________ 

     Course is required for the certificate program(s)  

 X   Course is used as an elective for the MS in Special Education  

2. Rationale for proposal : 

This course provides special education theory and practice needed to meet the professional 

standards required for teacher candidates in Illinois seeking Learning Behavior Specialist I licensure. 

Candidates majoring in Special Education must demonstrate knowledge and skills acquired in this 

course to successfully educate students with exceptional learning needs as licensed professionals in 

the field. In addition, the course increases the number of elective options for those seeking an MS in 

Special Education. With the focus on literacy and numeracy, the course can increase the knowledge 

and skills of practicing professionals.   

Justifications for (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Similarity to other courses: N/A 

Prerequisites: Candidates must meet minimum requirements for admissions to the College of 

Education Master of Arts in Teaching in agreement with and as outlined by the Illinois State Board of 

Education for those seeking certification through entitlement to teach in Illinois. Or candidates must 

be enrolled in the MS in SPE Program to take this course.  

Co-requisites: N/A 

Enrollment restrictions: Candidates must meet minimum requirements for admissions to the College 

of Education Master of Arts in Teaching in agreement with and as outlined by the Illinois State Board 

of Education for those seeking certification through entitlement to teach in Illinois. Or candidates 

must be enrolled in the MS in SPE Program to take this course. 

Writing active, intensive, centered: N/A  



 

 

Capstone as Senior Seminar: N/A 

3. General education assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

General education component: N/A 

Curriculum:  N/A 

Instruction:  N/A 

Assessment: N/A 

4. Online/Hybrid delivery justification & assurances (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Online or hybrid delivery justification:  

This course is being developed to address the teacher shortage in special education in Illinois 

and across the United States. The course is intended to serve a population of candidates that 

cannot attend classes on campus and asynchronous delivery makes the course accessible to 

candidates who work both in schools and those who are career changers.  Since it is also 

being used as an elective in the MS in SPE program, which is a fully online program, the 

course must be delivered in an online format to meet the needs of those advanced candidates 

as well.  
 
Instruction:  

Candidates will be able to access audio and/or video recordings and other instructional 

materials through EIU’s online learning management system. Assignments, discussion 

postings, and quizzes/exams will be completed or submitted within the learning management 

system. Feedback from the instructor will be provided through the LMS, email, online 

discussion boards, and synchronous video conference. Faculty members who teach this 

course will have completed OCDI training or equivalent. 

Integrity:  

Syllabus content includes statements regarding academic dishonesty and plagiarism as well as 

adherence to dispositional professional ethical standards required of all College of Education 

majors. To deter dishonesty, the EIU learning management system includes software for 

detection of dishonesty during exams and plagiarism when documents are submitted.  
 

Interaction:  

The instructor and students will be able to communicate with one another through email, 

discussion boards, and collaborative functions provided by the learning management system. 

The instructor will post weekly videos and encourage candidates to meet for office hours. 

Candidates will be encouraged to collaborate with one another through the learning 

management system. 

 
Model Syllabus (Part II)  

Please include the following information:  

1. Course  



 

 

SPE 5005 Instructional Strategies and Assessment Approaches for Literacy and Numeracy for students 

with Exceptional Learning Needs (3-0-3). 

2. Course Description: 

This course serves to enhance teacher competencies in assessing and teaching literacy and numeracy 

skills for students at-risk and those with exceptional learning needs. Focus will be placed on developing 

an understanding of literacy and numeracy foundations, learners’ skills in these areas, designing and 

implementing programming, and evaluating the effectiveness of specific interventions and programs. 

Learning Objectives for the Course 

Candidates Will: 

1. Demonstrate an understanding of the importance of scientifically based literacy and numeracy 
research and how to access, read, and apply high quality research findings. GLG 1, 4 

2. Identify the basic underlying foundations of assessment, curriculum, and instruction for 
students with literacy and/or numeracy challenges across grade ranges and severity levels. GLG 
1 

3. Demonstrate an understanding of central concepts, laws, scope and sequence, and learning 
standards in literacy and numeracy skill development. GLG 1 

4. Demonstrate an understanding of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS) and Response to 
Intervention (RTI) as related to literacy and numeracy. GLG 1 

5. Analyze and describe how to choose, evaluate, create, and administer literacy and numeracy 
assessments for a variety of purposes in schools (e.g. formative assessment, screening, 
diagnostic, progress monitoring, and outcome evaluation). GLG 1,2,3,5 

6. Demonstrate understanding of Evidence-Based Practices in teaching literacy and/or numeracy 
skills to students with various types of disabilities and challenges (e.g. dyslexia, dyscalculia, 
dysgraphia, children who are Multi-Lingual Learners (MLLs), those with more intensive needs, 
etc.) GLG 1,4 

7. Utilize data to make decisions/develop interventions and program planning for students with 
ELN in literacy and/or numeracy. GLG 1, 2, 4, 5 

8. Develop skills in working with a variety of stakeholders (parents, related service providers, 
general educators, outside providers, etc.) to make recommendations that support literacy and 
numeracy development. GLG 3, 4, 5 

 
EIU Graduate Learning Goals (GLG) 
1. A depth of content knowledge. The depth of content knowledge can include program learning 
objectives related specifically to the knowledge base as defined by the discipline; specific skill sets in the 
areas of technology, leadership, management, or laboratory procedures; application of theory into 
practice; and/or competency as a performer, educator, artist, or conductor 
2. Critical thinking and problem-solving skills. Critical thinking and problem solving can be assessed 
through various class assignments including laboratory procedures and reports; application of case 
studies and other simulated situations; and evaluations of health/medical status as well as by 
performance on the program's comprehensive knowledge component.  
3. Effective oral and written communication skills. Oral and written communication skills typically are 
assessed throughout the students' degree program. Regular course assignments, including position 
papers, lab reports, research reviews, technical presentations, debates, and facilitated discussions as 
well as performance as a graduate assistant, if appropriate, can be utilized. 



 

 

4. Evidence of advanced scholarship through research and/or creative activity. Advanced scholarship 
through research and creative activity is a critical component of all graduate degree programs. Evidence 
of scholarly activity might include formulating, conducting, and presenting original research, critically 
reviewing and synthesizing existing research, designing artwork or other creative works and composing 
a musical piece. 
5. Ethical and professional responsibility is an important component of graduate-level training and may 
include awareness of specific codes of ethics in a discipline, integrity in scholarship and research 
practices, professional disposition, respect and value for diversity and inclusion, and a commitment to 
respectful and responsible discourses within and beyond a discipline. 
 
Additional Standards Addressed in this Course: 

Illinois Teacher Prep initial All SPE Standards 
Illinois Teacher Prep LBSI Standards 
CEC Initial Standards 
CEC Advanced Standards 
Illinois Professional Educator Standards 
Illinois Social Emotional Learning Standards 
Illinois Culturally Responsive Teaching and Learning Standards 
InTASC Core 
 
4. Course Materials 
Required Texts: 

Honig, B., Diamond, L., & Gutlohn, L. (2018). Teaching reading sourcebook (3rd ed.). CORE.  

Hougen, M. & Smartt, S. (2020). Fundamentals of literacy instruction and assessment (2nd ed.). Paul H. 

Brookes. 

Witzel, B. & Little, M. (2016). Teaching elementary mathematics to struggling learners. Guilford. 

Ysseldyke, J., Chapparo, E, & Van DerHeyden, A. (2023).  Assessment in special and inclusive education 

(14th ed.). Pro-ed. 

National Center on Intensive Intervention https://intensiveintervention.org/ 

*Additional readings, videos, and other learning materials will be available via the LMS. 

5. Weekly Outline of Content 

 Topic(s) 

Weeks 1-2 Introduction to the Course 
Foundations of Literacy 
                                                                                                                            

Weeks 3-4 Foundations of Numeracy                                                                             

Weeks 5-6 Learning Standards 
Scope and Sequence of Skill Development in the Areas of Literacy and Numeracy 
Related Disorders:  Dyslexia, Dysgraphia, Dyscalculia 



 

 

*Exam I 

Weeks 7-8 Assessment of Literacy and Numeracy Skills 
MTSS/RtI 
Summative and Formative Assessment 
Progress Monitoring                                             
*Assessment Administration Assignment                                                                                                                                                                                        

Weeks 9-10 Research and Evidence: Being a Good Consumer 

Weeks 11-12 Interventions and Programs for Literacy and Numeracy Development 
                                                                                              

Weeks 13-14 Data Analysis                                                                      
Data Based Decision Making 
Data Based Individualization/Intervention Intensification                                             
*Interpreting Data for Decision Making Assignment 

Weeks 15-16 Professional Growth Planning 
*Exam II 

 

6. Assignments and Evaluation, including weights for final course grade  

Readings: Candidates are expected to complete all readings for the course which are listed in the 

schedule and found in the issued textbooks or housed in the LMS.  

Related Course Learning Objectives:1,2,3,4,6 

Exams and Quizzes: Quizzes may be given to assess candidates’ comprehension of the course content. 

Two exams will be used to evaluate foundational knowledge and application of material. (25%) 

Related Course Learning Objectives:2,3,4,6 

Course Module Activities: In each module, activities will be assigned as a means of assessing candidates’ 

application of course content. These may include Discussion Board posts and planning for professional 

growth. (40%) 

Related Course Learning Objectives:1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8 

Course Projects:  During the semester, candidates will complete two projects:  one related to the 

assessment of literacy and numeracy skills and one that requires candidates to use data to plan 

interventions for an individual student or small group of students with similar needs. These are the 

major projects for this course; a corresponding rubric/grade sheet will serve as the evaluation tool for 

each. (35%) 

Related Course Learning Objectives: 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8 

Note:  alternate/additional assignments may be added based on candidate need 

7. Grading Scale 



A point scale is used.  Grades are determined by the number of points earned.  The following scale is used 

by the Department of Special Education faculty: 

90% or more of total points A 

80-89% of total points  B 

70-79% of total points  C 

60-69% of total points  D 

Less than 60% of total points F 

Date approved by the department or school:  9/20/2023; revisions approved 9/28/23 Date approved 
by the college curriculum committee:  10/02/2023   council on teacher ed: 10/12/2023
Date approved by the Honors Council (if this is an honors course):   
Date approved by CAA:    CGS:   



NEW/REVISED COURSE PROPOSAL FORMAT (Approved by 

CAA on 9/30/21 and CGS on 11/16/21, Effective SP 2022) 

Banner/Catalog Information (Coversheet) 

1. £ New Course  - or -  £ Revision of Existing Course

2. Course Prefix and Number:

3. Short title:

4. Long title:

5. Hours per week:   Class   Lab   Credit 

6. Terms:  £ Fall  £ Spring  £ Summer  £ On demand

7. Initial term:  £ Fall  £ Spring  £ Summer     Year:

8. Catalog course description:

9. Course attributes:

General education component:

£ Cultural diversity  £ Honors  £ Writing centered  £ Writing intensive

£ Writing active  £ Department Capstone as Senior Seminar

10. Instructional delivery

Type of Course:

£ Lecture  £ Lab   £ Lecture/lab combined  £ Independent study/research

£ Internship  £ Performance  £ Practicum/clinical  £ Other (Specify):

Mode(s) of Delivery:

£ Face to Face  £ Online Synchronous  £ Online Asynchronous  £ Study Abroad

£ Hybrid (Specify approximate amount of on-line and face-to-face instruction):

11. Course(s) to be deleted from the catalog once this course is approved:

CGS AGENDA ITEM 24-13



12. Equivalent course(s):

a. Are students allowed to take equivalent course(s) for credit?  £ Yes  £ No

13. Prerequisite(s):

a. Can prerequisite(s) be taken concurrently?  £ Yes  £ No

b. Minimum grade required for the prerequisite course(s)?

c. Use Banner coding to enforce prerequisite course(s)?  £ Yes  £ No

d. Who may waive prerequisite(s)?

£ No One  £ Chair  £ Instructor  £ Advisor  £ Other (Specify):

14. Co-requisite(s):

15. Enrollment restrictions

a. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may take the course:

b. Degrees, colleges, majors, levels, classes which may not take the course:

16. Repeat status:  £ May not be repeated  £ May be repeated once with credit

17. Enter the limit, if any, on hours which may be applied to a major or minor:

18. Grading methods:  £ Standard  £ CR/NC  £ Audit  £ ABC/NC

19. Special grading provisions:

£ Grade for course will not count in a student’s grade point average.

£ Grade for course will not count in hours toward graduation.

£ Grade for course will be removed from GPA if student already has credit for or is registered in:

£ Credit hours for course will be removed from student’s hours toward graduation if student already has credit   

     for or is registered in:  



 
20. Additional costs to students:  

Supplemental materials or software: 

Course Fee  £ No  £ Yes (Explain):  

21. Community college transfer: 

£ A community college course may be judged equivalent. 

£ A community college may not be judged equivalent. 

Note: Upper division credit (3000+) will not be granted for a community college course, even if the content is 

judged to be equivalent. 

Rationale, Justifications, and Assurances (Part 1) 

1. £ Course is required for the major(s) of: 

£ Course is required for the minor(s) of: 

£ Course is required for the certificate program(s) of: 

£ Course is used as an elective 

2. Rationale for proposal: 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Justifications for (answer N/A if not applicable) 

Similarity to other courses: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Prerequisites: 

Co-requisites: 

Enrollment restrictions: 

Writing active, intensive, centered: 



4. General education assurances (answer N/A if not applicable)

General education component:

Curriculum: 

Instruction: 

Assessment: 

5. Online/hybrid delivery justification and assurances (answer N/A if not applicable)

Online or hybrid delivery justification:

Instruction: 

Integrity: 

Interaction: 



 
Model Syllabus (Part II)  
Please include the following Information:  

1. Course number and title: 

 

 

2. Catalog description: 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Learning objectives: 

 

 

 

 

 

4. Course materials: 

 

 

 

 

5. Weekly outline of content: 

 

 

 

 

 



6. Assignments and evaluation, including weights for final course grade:

7. Grading scale:

Date approved by the department or school:   

Date approved by the college curriculum committee:

Date approved by the Honors Council (if this is an honors course): 

Date approved by CAA:           CGS:   

   10/02/2023 council of teacher ed: 10/12/2023  


	Check Box1: Yes
	Check Box2: Off
	Text4: arr
	Text5: arr
	Text6: 6
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Yes
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box12: Yes
	Check Box13: Off
	Text14: 2025
	Text15: SPE 5001
	Text16: Residency II 
	Text17: Residency II in Special Education
	Text18: This course will focus on reflective practice of the special education teacher by enhancing competencies in refining the delivery of instruction for students with exceptional learning needs. Focus will be placed on assessing, designing, implementing, and evaluating long and short term lessons, individualized education plans and communication with families and colleagues. 
	Text19: N/A
	Check Box20: Off
	Check Box21: Off
	Check Box22: Off
	Check Box23: Off
	Check Box24: Off
	Check Box25: Off
	Check Box26: Off
	Check Box27: Off
	Check Box28: Off
	Check Box29: Off
	Check Box30: Off
	Check Box31: Off
	Check Box32: Yes
	Check Box33: Off
	Check Box34: Off
	Check Box35: Yes
	Check Box36: Yes
	Check Box37: Off
	Text38: 
	Text39: Individual observations meetings with instructors required
	Text40: Not Applicable
	Check Box41: Off
	Text42: N/A
	Check Box43: Off
	Check Box44: Off
	Text45: SPE 5000
	Check Box46: Off
	Check Box47: Yes
	Text48: C
	Check Box49: Yes
	Check Box50: Off
	Check Box51: Off
	Check Box52: Yes
	Check Box53: Off
	Check Box54: Off
	Check Box55: Off
	Text56: 
	Text57: N/A
	Text58: Enrollment in MAT in Special Education
	Text59: No one but those listed in 15a.
	Check Box60: Yes
	Check Box61: Off
	Text62: 6
	Check Box63: Off
	Check Box64: Off
	Check Box65: Off
	Check Box66: Yes
	Check Box67: Off
	Check Box68: Off
	Check Box69: Off
	Text70: 
	Text71: 
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box5: Yes
	Check Box6: Off
	Check Box14: Yes
	Check Box15: Yes
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box17: Off
	Check Box18: Off
	Text20: N/A
	Text21: Student fee of $125 will cover Equipment/Software for Distance Supervision, Coaching, and Evaluation
	Text22: Special Education Master of Arts in Teaching
	Text23: 
	Text24: 
	Text25: 
	Text26: This course provides the supervised clinical experience needed to meet the professional standards required for teacher candidates in Illinois seeking an initial Professional Educators License (PEL) with an endorsement as a Learning Behavior Specialist I (LBSI). Candidates majoring in Special Education must demonstrate knowledge and skills acquired in this course to successfully educate students with exceptional learning needs as licensed professionals in the field. This course will allow candidates to apply theory to practice in the second of two semester-long residency experiences.
	Text27: N/A
	Text28: Candidates must meet minimum requirements for admission to the College of Education Master of Arts in Teaching in agreement with and as outlined by the Illinois State Board of Education for those seeking certification through entitlement to teach in Illinois. In addition, students must complete the first semester of residency (SPE 5000).
	Text29: N/A
	Text30: This course is designed exclusively for graduate students pursuing teacher licensure and a master’s degree in the Master of Arts in Special Education Program. Undergraduate and non-degree seeking post-baccalaureate candidates take the undergraduate student teaching courses (STG 4000 and STG 4001). In addition, students must successfully complete SPE 5000 in order to enroll in this class. 
	Text31: N/A
	Text33: N/A
	Text34: N/A
	Text35: N/A
	Text36: N/A
	Text37: This course is being developed to address the teacher shortage in special education in Illinois and across the United States. The course is intended to serve a population of candidates that cannot attend classes on campus and asynchronous delivery makes the course accessible to candidates who work both in schools and those who are career changers. Individual meetings with the course instructor will ensure the students are able to receive high quality supervision during their residency experience. 
	Text41: Candidates will be able to access audio and/or video recordings and other instructional materials and resources through EIU’s online learning management system. Assignments/projects, discussion postings, reflections and a weekly mentor-mentee log will be completed or submitted within the learning management system. Feedback from the instructor will be provided through the LMS, email, online discussion boards, and synchronous video conference. As this course is a clinical experience, much of the instruction and evaluation will be individualized.  Candidates will be required to complete formal observations by providing video access to their instruction and meet with instructor (supervisor) to debrief.  Evaluation, coaching, and mentoring will be completed through asynchronous (instructor feedback/responses) and synchronous (live individual meetings/sessions).  Seminar attendance will be required.  Faculty members who teach this course will have completed OCDI training or equivalent. 
	Text43: Syllabus content includes statements regarding academic dishonesty and plagiarism as well as adherence to dispositional professional ethical standards required of all College of Education majors. To deter dishonesty, the EIU learning management system includes software for detection of dishonesty during exams and plagiarism when documents are submitted
	Text44: The instructor and students will be able to communicate with one another through email, discussion boards, and collaborative functions provided by the learning management system. The instructor will encourage candidates to meet for office hours and individual meetings about formal evaluations will be required. Candidates will be encouraged to collaborate with one another through the learning management system. Interaction with instructor will be frequent and utilize various modes of communication.
	Text46: SPE 5001– Residency II in Special Education
	Text47: This course will focus on advancing reflective practice in special education teacher by enhancing competencies in refining the delivery of instruction for students with exceptional learning needs. Focus will be placed on assessing, designing, implementing, and evaluating long and short term lessons, individualized education plans and communication with families and colleagues. 
	Text49: 1. Students will apply research-based principles of student analysis, instructional planning, and assessment in the development of lesson and unit plans and reflect on implementation. (Graduate Learning Goals 1, 2, 3, 4, 5) 2. Students will implement research-based, appropriate teaching and classroom management strategies  that increase student engagement in daily lessons. (Graduate Learning Goals 2, 3, 4, 5) 3. Students will critically and regularly reflect upon their experience and implications towards future growth in the profession; these reflections will be individual, with their residency supervisor, and with their peers in seminar settings. (Graduate Learning Goals 1, 2, 3, 5) 4. Students will demonstrate readiness to enter the teaching profession through creation of a reflective, summative, and integrative professional portfolio (Graduate Learning Goals 1, 3, 4)
	Text50: No textbook will be assigned for this class. Materials will be chiefly those used directly or indirectly in the completion of planning, teaching, and assessment activities in the residency setting, and will be supplied by the host school. Some topical readings may be provided by the course faculty member, the student’s cooperating teacher, and seminar guest speakers.
	Text51: Week 1: Getting to know you. This week will focus no critically examining revisiting the classroom schedule.  Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective JournalWeek 2: Seminar 1, Diversity within the context of schools and community. Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective Journal topic: Diverse Issues Survey and reflectionWeek 3: Examining the classroom environment.  Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective journal Topic: Bullying and School ClimateWeek 4: Classroom Management. Formal Observations will occur in and around this time.  Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective Journal: Reflection on implementation of the classroom management plan. Week 5: Diversity and Behavior. Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective JournalWeek 6: Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective Journal: reflection on Behavior Intervention PlansWeek 7: Behavior Intervention Plans in Action. Formal Observation 2 Begins in and around this week. Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective Journal: Using School Report Card DataWeek 8: Formal Observations continue. Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective JournalWeek 9: Seminar 2: Focus on Diversity. Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective Journal: Topic Refection on students with diverse communication needsWeek 10: Formal Observations begin again.  Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective JournalWeek 11: Communication with families.  Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective Journal. Assignment: Topic parent communication sample and reflection Week 12:  Seminar 3: Community and Family Relationships, Multilingual Learners.  Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective Journal topic: Multi-Lingual LearnersWeek 13: Final Formal Observations Begin. Topic: Economics and Schools.  Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective Journal. Week 14: Economics and Schools: Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective Journal topic: Working with Students from Diverse Economic backgroundsWeek 15: Continuing Professional Growth and Maintaining Connections. Assignments include weekly Lesson Plans, classroom observations and Reflective Journal.Week 16: Pulling it all Together: Plan for moving Forward.  Assignment: Final Reflection and Professional Growth Plan
	Text52: Readings: Candidates are expected to complete all readings for the course which are listed in the schedule and found in the issued textbooks or housed in the LMS. Related Course Learning Objectives:1,2,3,4Reflections: Candidates complete weekly reflections related to working with diverse populations and will address assessment, bullying, instruction, management, collaboration, and other topics as specified by the instructor (40%)Related Course Learning Objectives: 1,2,3,4A weekly mentor-mentee log will be maintained, submitted, and discussed with instructor (10%)Related Course Learning Objectives: 3,4Teaching Evaluations: Candidates will be informally evaluated at least 2 times during the semester and formally evaluated at least two times during the semester.  Feedback will be provided for informal evaluations while formal evaluations will result in a score of PASS/FAIL.  Candidates must PASS two formal evaluations to successfully complete the course.  Evaluations will NOT calculate into the grade earned in the course.  Related Course Learning Objectives: 2,3,4Seminars will be held a minimum of 3 times across the semester and candidates will be expected to attend virtually.  These meetings will cover diversity, licensure requirements/processes, legal updates, best practices in collaboration, assessment, instruction, and management as well as ethical challenges and considerations. (10%)Individual Meetings with Instructor will be held at pre-determined intervals no less than 4 times across the semester.  Exit Interview will be held as a summative evaluation at the conclusion of the semester.  (10%) Related Course Learning Objectives: 3,4Course Projects:  In addition to course reflections which are focused on diversity within the candidate’s teaching context, two course projects will be completed related to working with diverse populations. The first will be a self-report/analysis of home/school communication including report cards and the second will be the creation of a digital professional portfolio.  (30%)Related Course Learning Objectives: 1,2,3,4*alternative/additional assignments may be added based upon candidate needNote: Students will complete appropriate EPP disposition and other field experience assessments (ungraded)
	Text53: A= 90-100%B= 80-89%C= 70=79%NC< 70%
	Text54: 9/20/2023
	Text55: 
	Text60: 
	Text61: 
	Text63: 


